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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Mesa, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Marc Community Resources,
Inc. and Affiliates (collectively, the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates as of September 30,
2019 and 2018, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The supplemental schedules on pages 29-32 are presented for the purpose of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

@M“%

Phoenix, Arizona
September 25, 2020



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 8,768,910 S 14,495,387
Consumer trust funds 74,196 43,685
Accounts receivable, net 4,007,169 2,137,552
Contributions receivable 9,219 132,446
Prepaid expenses and other 295,989 325,387
Investments 3,942,280 426,340
Investments in affiliates 14,391 14,391
Certificates of deposit - 253,976
Property and equipment, net 27,250,374 28,390,888
Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of $640,254
and $320,127, respectively 2,561,018 2,881,145
Deposits 501,684 330,617
Total assets S 47,425,230 S 49,431,814
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Consumer trust funds S 74,196 S 43,685
Accounts payable 1,029,069 725,179
Accrued liabilities 5,477,563 5,141,669
Deferred revenue 487,525 1,973,584
Deferred rent 686,591 799,448
Lease incentive obligation, net 307,692 360,439
Derivative financial instrument: interest rate swap 714,237 106,206
Notes payable 1,058,785 1,149,984
Bonds payable, less unamortized bond issuance costs of
$294,953 and $304,701, respectively 12,213,622 12,530,444
Total liabilities 22,049,280 22,830,638
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 19,499,161 20,890,625
With donor restrictions 5,876,789 5,710,551
Total net assets 25,375,950 26,601,176
Total liabilities and net assets S 47,425,230 S 49,431,814

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 3



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenue, Support and Gains
Governmental

Arizona Department of Economic Security

Arizona Department of Health Services
City of Mesa

Total governmental revenue

Other

Service contracts

Service fees

Contributions

Investment income

Loss on disposition of property and
equipment

Rental income

Change in value of derivative financial
instrument

Other

Total other revenue and gains
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue, support and gains

Expenses
Program services

Residential
Employment services
Day services
Home services
Other housing
Outpatient clinic

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting activities
Total expenses
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2019

Without donor

With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Totals
S 12,869,190 - S 12,869,190
50,538,028 - 50,538,028
35,748 - 35,748
63,442,966 - 63,442,966
469,571 - 469,571
148,813 - 148,813
384,313 205,625 589,938
102,419 720 103,139
(33,768) - (33,768)
845,967 - 845,967
(608,031) - (608,031)
3,320,910 - 3,320,910
4,630,194 206,345 4,836,539
40,107 (40,107) -
68,113,267 166,238 68,279,505
7,284,520 - 7,284,520
7,094,765 - 7,094,765
6,100,452 - 6,100,452
6,550,007 - 6,550,007
516,943 - 516,943
32,639,128 - 32,639,128
60,185,815 - 60,185,815
9,258,265 - 9,258,265
60,651 - 60,651
9,318,916 - 9,318,916
69,504,731 - 69,504,731
(1,391,464) 166,238 (1,225,226)
20,890,625 5,710,551 26,601,176
S 19,499,161 5,876,789 S 25,375,950




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Activities
Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2018
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Totals
Revenue, Support and Gains
Governmental
Arizona Department of Economic Security S 13,447,173 - S 13,447,173
Arizona Department of Health Services 49,720,910 - 49,720,910
City of Mesa 29,730 - 29,730
Total governmental revenue 63,197,813 - 63,197,813
Other
Service contracts 464,894 - 464,894
Service fees 213,703 - 213,703
United Way contributions - 24,000 24,000
Contributions 362,823 16,107 378,930
Investment income 30,039 466 30,505
Loss on disposition of property and
equipment (71,730) - (71,730)
Rental income 854,150 - 854,150
Loss on investments in affiliates (53,908) - (53,908)
Change in value of derivative financial
instrument 89,484 - 89,484
Other 3,211,782 - 3,211,782
Total other revenue and gains 5,101,237 40,573 5,141,810
Net assets released from restrictions 235,133 (235,133) -
Total revenue, support and gains 68,534,183 (194,560) 68,339,623
Expenses
Program services
Residential 6,987,083 - 6,987,083
Employment services 6,589,579 - 6,589,579
Day services 7,060,032 - 7,060,032
Home services 6,499,658 - 6,499,658
Other housing 594,768 - 594,768
Outpatient clinic 33,945,795 - 33,945,795
Total program services 61,676,915 - 61,676,915
Supporting activities
Management and general 6,401,975 - 6,401,975
Fundraising 45,373 - 45,373
Total supporting activities 6,447,348 - 6,447,348
Total expenses 68,124,263 - 68,124,263
Operating Income 409,920 (194,560) 215,360
Loss on Refinancing (158,856) - (158,856)
Change in Net Assets 251,064 (194,560) 56,504
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 20,639,561 5,905,111 26,544,672
Net Assets, End of Year S 20,890,625 S 5,710,551 S 26,601,176

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 5
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile net assets to net
cash (used for) from operating activities
Interest expense attributable to unamortized bond
issuance costs
Loss on refinancing
Net unrealized gain on investments
Change in value on derivative financial instruments
Net loss on investments in affiliates
Loss on disposition of property and equipment
Depreciation
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Amortization of lease incentive obligation
Amortization of goodwill
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Due from related parties
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deferred rent
Leasehold incentive obligation

Net Cash (used for) from Operating Activities

Investing Activities
Acquisition of assets of Partners in Recovery
Proceeds from notes receivable
Proceeds from sale of certificates of deposit
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment

Net Cash used for Investing Activities

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2019 2018

(1,225,226) 56,504
9,748 12,697

- 158,856
(30,807) (697)
608,031 (89,484)

- 53,908

33,768 71,730
2,264,890 2,327,586
34,404 11,330
(52,747) (39,561)
320,127 320,127
(1,904,021) 173,322
- 95,780

123,227 2,997
29,398 349,797
(171,067) (239,281)
303,890 (278,344)
335,894 906,000
(1,486,059) (1,726,046)
(112,857) 137,197

- 400,000
(919,407) 2,704,418

- (927,939)

- 16,782

253,976 (1,140)
3,464,000 10,958
(6,949,133) -
23,785 677,172

(1,181,929)

(1,815,399)

(4,389,301)

(2,039,566)




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings on notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Borrowing on line of credit
Payments on line of credit
Bond issuance costs
Issuance of bonds payable
Termination of bonds payable
Payments on bonds payable

Net Cash (used for) from Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest

Acquisition of equipment through capital lease

Supplemental Schedule of Investing Activities
Acquisition of Partners in Recovery
Cash acquired
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deferred rent
Notes payable
Previously held equity interest remeasured at fair value

Cash paid

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2018

(326,570)

1,500,000
(2,108,403)
900,000
(900,000)
(308,993)
12,942,000
(8,260,200)
(253,934)

(417,769)

3,510,470

(5,726,477)

14,495,387

4,175,322

10,320,065

8,768,910

S 14,495,387

631,989

S 571,901

S 31,966

$ 3,072,061
119,774
321,689

3,401,617

3,201,272
(284,180)
(2,101,624)
(1,667,760)
(525,565)
(1,143,879)
(393,405)

S 4,000,000




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 1- Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates (Marc Community) is a nonprofit corporation, incorporated in the
state of Arizona on August 6, 1957 to provide places of residence, employment services, training, education,
rehabilitation, and behavioral health services for developmentally disabled children and adults, as well as people
with severe mental illness. Marc Community provides services throughout primarily Maricopa County, Arizona.
During the year ended June 30, 2010, Marc Community acquired Advocates for the Disabled, Inc. (Advocates) by
an action by the Board of Directors of Advocates granting Marc Community the sole power to appoint directors
to the Advocates' Board. During the year, Advocates changed their name to Copa Health, Inc.

TecMarg, Inc. (TecMarc) is an Arizona corporation and was incorporated in March 2008 to conduct the business
of information technology sales and support and property management services. TecMarc has 1,000 shares of
authorized common stock, all of which have been issued to Marc Community at S1 per share.

During 2018, The Foundation for People with Disabilities changed their name to The Marc Foundation (the
Foundation). The Foundation is a nonprofit corporation, incorporated in the state of Arizona on January 29,
1988, to provide housing for disabled individuals in residential settings and employment training facilities
throughout Maricopa County. Marc Community is the sole member of the Foundation's Board of Directors.
During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Foundation transferred substantially all of its property to Marc
Community.

The Village at Oasis Park — Phase I, Inc. (the Village) is a nonprofit corporation and was incorporated in the state
of Arizona in October 2009 to provide housing for disabled individuals. The Village's Board of Directors consists
of the Executive Committee of Marc Community and other individuals selected by the Executive Committee of
Marc Community.

The Village at Oasis Park — Phase Il, Inc. (the Village Il) is a nonprofit corporation and was incorporated in the
state of Arizona in August 2010 to provide housing for disabled individuals. The Village Il's Board of Directors
consists of the Executive Committee of Marc Community and other individuals selected by the Executive
Committee of Marc Community.

Partners in Recovery, LLC (Partners in Recovery) is a nonprofit organization formed under the laws of the state
of Arizona in April 2009 as a limited liability company and has an infinite life. The Organization provides
behavioral health case management, treatment, integrated physical care and support to adults with serious
mental illnesses in Maricopa County, Arizona. The members of the Organization were Marc Community
Resources, Inc. (Marc Community), Jewish Family and Children’s Service, Inc. (JFCS), and Recovery Innovations,
Inc. (RIl) dba Rl International, each of which is a nonprofit corporation. As of October 6, 2017, Marc Community
bought out the remaining equity partners and is now the sole member of the Organization.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Marc Community, Advocates,
TecMarc, the Foundation, Partners in Recovery, the Village, and the Village Il (collectively, the Organization). All
significant inter-organization transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

10



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Change in Accounting Policy

As of July 1, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities.
The provisions of the ASU replace the existing three classes of net assets with two new classes (net assets
without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions). The ASU introduces new disclosure
requirements to provide information about what is included or excluded from the Organization’s intermediate
measure of operations as well as disclosures to improve a financial statement user’s ability to assess the
Organization’s liquidity and exposure to risk. The ASU also introduces new reporting requirements to present
expenses by both function and natural classification in a single location and to present investment returns on
the consolidated statements of activities net of external and direct internal investment expenses.

The standard improves the usefulness and understandability of the financial statement reporting. Accordingly,
the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes follow the net asset classification,
presentation, and disclosure requirements prescribed by the ASU.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of cash, and at times, cash equivalents consisting of highly-liquid financial instruments purchased
with original maturities of three months or less.

Receivables and Credit Policy

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the allowance for doubtful accounts and a credit to accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are
considered past due 30 days after the invoice date. The Organization does not require collateral on accounts
receivable balances and does not generally charge interest on past due balances. At September 30, 2019 and
2018, the allowance was approximately $95,000 and $66,000, respectively.

Investments

Investment purchases are recorded at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation. Thereafter,
investments are reported at their fair values in the statements of financial position. Net investment return/(loss)
is reported in the statements of activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized
capital gains and losses, less external and direct internal investment expenses.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair
value due to the short-term nature of the items. The carrying value of contributions receivable due in more than
one year is based on the discounted net present value of the expected future cash receipts and approximates
fair value. The fair values of bonds and notes payable are based on the stated interest rates and approximate
their carrying values.

11



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or
include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, the Organization has not experienced
losses in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and contributions receivable is
considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the
outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and foundations supportive of the Organization’s
mission.

Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment over $5,000 is stated at cost. Property acquired by gift is stated at estimated
fair value at the date of the contribution. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives ranging from four to twenty-five years. In the absence of donor restrictions on how gifts of long-lived
assets must be used, the Organization does not imply time restrictions on such contributions. Costs of
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed
currently.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset
impairment during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents costs in excess of purchase price over the fair value of the assets of businesses acquired,
including other identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is amortized on the straight-line method over a period of
10 years. Goodwill will be tested for impairment upon the occurrence of an event that would indicate that the
fair value of the Organization is below its carrying value. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the carrying value
of the Organization’s goodwill was not considered impaired.

Deferred Revenue

Each month, the Organization receives block payment funding for behavioral health services from the Regional
Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) in Maricopa County. These funds are considered earned if total service
claims generated equal or exceed the block payments. If service claims are insufficient, the RBHA has the
contractual right to recoup the funding or characterize the deficiency as deferred revenue with an authorization
to use the funding in the next fiscal year. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization
has a service claim deficiency balance of approximately $488,000 and $1,974,000, respectively. This amount is
classified as deferred revenue on the consolidated statements of financial position.

12



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

Deferred Rent

Certain leases require escalating rent payments over the lease term. The total rent payments are divided by the
total number of months to compute an amount, which is charged to expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Deferred rent occurs when the monthly straight-line expense is greater than the monthly rent paid.

Lease Incentive Obligation

There are certain leases held by the Organization that have included provisions for lease incentives related to
tenant improvement allowances. The funding for the purchase of leasehold improvements has been recorded as
leasehold improvements, is included in property and equipment and is depreciated over the life of the lease. A
corresponding liability has been recorded for the lease incentive obligation. This obligation is being amortized
over the life of the lease with annual amortization being netted against rent expense.

Interest-Rate Swap

The Organization uses an interest-rate swap to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable (Note 9). The related
liability or asset is reported at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position, and unrealized
gains or losses are included in the consolidated statements of activities.

Self-Insurance Reserves

The Organization provides for self-insurance reserve for estimated incurred but not reported claims for its
employee health plan. This reserve, which is included in accrued liabilities on the consolidated statements of
financial position, is estimated based upon historical submission and payment data, cost trends, utilization
history, and other relevant factors.

Adjustments to reserves are reflected in the operating results in the period in which the change in estimate is
identified. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, amounts reserved for these claims totaled approximately $753,000
and $846,000, respectively.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to
donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. Some donor
imposed (or grantor) restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specific by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. The Organization reports contributions restricted
by donors as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a
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stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the
revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statements
of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Governmental Revenue

The Organization has contracts with state governmental agencies and various insurance companies to provide
services to clients with developmental disabilities and severe mental iliness. Revenue from these contracts is
recognized as the services are performed.

Contributions

Contributions of cash or other assets are recognized as revenue when received at the estimated fair value on the
date of contribution. Promises to give are recognized as revenue when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. Promises to give that are received with conditions are not
recognized until those conditions are substantially met, unless the likelihood that the Organization will not fulfill
the conditions is remote, in which case the contribution is recognized when the promise is made.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are amortized over the period the related obligation is outstanding using the straight-line
method, which is a reasonable estimate of the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are included
within long-term debt in the consolidated statements of financial position. Amortization of bond issuance costs
is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Advertising

The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended September 30, 2019
and 2018 totaled approximately $51,000 and $62,000, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
consolidated statements of activities. The consolidated statements of functional expenses present the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited. The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses
that are attributed to more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on
a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy and
depreciation, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries, employee-related expenses,
professional fees, transportation, supplies, equipment rental and other, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort.
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Income Tax Status

Marc Community, Advocates, the Foundation, the Village, the Village II, and Partners in Recovery, LLC are
organized as Arizona nonprofit corporations and have been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as organizations described
in Section 501(c)(3). They qualify for charitable contributions under Section 170. Marc Community, Advocates,
the Foundation and the Village have been determined not to be private foundations under Section 509(a)(2),
509(a)(1), 509(a)(3) and 509(a)(3), respectively. Management has determined the Village Il is not a private
foundation in accordance with Section 509(a)(3). The organizations are annually required to file a Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the organizations are subject to
income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose.
Advocates, the Foundation, the Village and the Village Il have determined they have no unrelated business
taxable income and have not filed the Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Returns (IRS Form 990-T), or its
Arizona equivalent, Form 99-T. Marc Community has unrelated business taxable income and has filed the
Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Returns (IRS Form 990-T), and its Arizona equivalent, Form 99-T.

TecMarc accounts for income taxes under the liability method pursuant to income tax accounting guidance.
Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between
the financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is established against the deferred tax
asset for the uncertainty of TecMarc’s ability to use the net operating tax loss carryforwards in the future.

Management believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have
any uncertain tax positions that are material to the consolidated financial statements. The organizations would
recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax
expense if such interest and penalties are incurred. Marc Community and TecMarc’s income tax filings required
by federal and state authorities are no longer subject to tax examination for years ending before September 30,
2016.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is that revenue
should be recognized in a manner that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. ASU 2014-09 defines a five-step process to achieve this core principle, which may require the
use of judgment and estimates. The Organization may adopt ASU 2014-09 either by using a full retrospective
approach for all periods presented or a modified retrospective approach.
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In June 2018, FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made. The update clarifies the guidance to distinguish between contributions and or
exchange transactions.

These standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, or October 1,
2020 for the Organization. The Organization has not yet selected a transition method and is currently evaluating
the impact of these standards on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which requires lessees to recognize
leases on the statement of financial position and disclose key information about leasing arrangements. The new
standard establishes a right-of-use (ROU) model that requires a lessee to recognize a ROU asset and lease
liability on the consolidated statements of financial position for all leases with a term longer than 12 months.
Leases will be classified as finance or operating, with classification affecting the pattern and classification of the
expense recognition in the consolidated statements of activities. The new standard is effective for the
Organization beginning October 1, 2022. The Organization is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of
the standard.

Note 2 - Liquidity and Availability
Financial assets at September 30, 2019 and 2018 available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within

one year of the consolidated statement of financial position date are comprised of the following, which are free
of internal and external restrictions:

2019 2018
Cash S 8,768,910 S 14,495,387
Accounts receivable, net 4,007,169 2,137,552
Investments 2,945,822 32,310

$ 15,721,901 S 16,665,249

The Organization manages their exposure to liquidity risk by regularly monitoring the liquidity required to meet
operating needs and other contractual commitments. The Organization prepares annual budgets to manage
liquidity and to determine general expenditures over the next 12 months and anticipates collecting revenue
sufficient to cover general expenditures during that period. Investments in the amount of $996,458 and
$394,030 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, are held for the non-qualified
deferred compensation plan (the Non-Qualified 457b Plan) and are not available for general expenditures.
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Note 3 - Conditional Promises to Give

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Organization received conditional promises to give as part
of agreements with Value Options (Magellan replaced Value Options as the RBHA contracted for Maricopa
County during the year ended June 30, 2008. Magellan was replaced by Mercy Maricopa Integrated Care during
the year ended June 30, 2014). Under the 2007 agreement, unrestricted title to two single-family residences,
with an estimated value of $607,000 at the date of the agreements, will be transferred to the Organization if
certain conditions are met. Under the 2006 agreement, unrestricted title to one single-family residence, with an
estimated value of $300,000 at the date of the agreement, will be transferred to the Organization if certain
conditions are met. The condition for the transfer of title is that the Organization functions as landlord of the
residences for a period of twenty-five years. During this period, the Organization will collect rent from the
tenants and will be responsible for repairs and maintenance on the residences. Once all conditions have been
met, the Organization will recognize the fair value of the property in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 4 - Business Combination

On October 6, 2017, Marc Community completed the purchase of Partners in Recovery resulting in 100%
ownership. Marc Community has historically accounted for the investment in Partners in Recovery as an
unconsolidated entity under the equity method of accounting. Marc Community purchased all of the assets
relating to Partners in Recovery and assumed certain trade payables, accrued liabilities and notes payable
associated with the assets being acquired. The aggregate purchase price paid was $4,000,000. The purchase of
Partners in Recovery directly aligns with the mission of Marc Community and will provide additional services to
be an integrated care provider. The goodwill of approximately $3,201,000 arising from the acquisition consists
largely of the synergies and economies of scale expected from combining the operations of Partners in Recovery
and Marc Community.

At the time of acquisition of Partners in Recovery, the investment in affiliate balance was approximately
$447,000. Marc Community remeasured the previously held 33% ownership in Partners in Recovery at fair value
in the amount of approximately $393,000 and recognized a loss of approximately $54,000 in the consolidated
statements of activities for the year ended September 30, 2018. The preliminary estimates of fair values
recorded are Level 3 inputs which have been determined by management based on various market and income
analysis and recent asset appraisals.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date:

Cash acquired S 3,072,061
Accounts receivable 119,774
Prepaid expenses and other 321,689
Property and equipment 3,401,617
Goodwill 3,201,272

Total identifiable assets acquired 10,116,413
Accounts payable (284,180)
Accrued liabilities (2,101,624)
Deferred revenue (1,667,760)
Deferred rent (525,565)
Notes payable (1,143,879)
Previously held equity interest remeasured at fair value (393,405)

Net assets acquired S 4,000,000

Note 5 - Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial statements. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to
determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are
inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing
the asset or liability based on the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Organization can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, the Organization develops
inputs using the best information available in the circumstances.
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In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized within
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account
factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to an assessment of the quality, risk or
liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value hierarchy requires the use of
observable market data when available. In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been determined based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:
Investments

A significant portion of the Organization’s investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they are
comprised of open-end mutual funds with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Organization's derivative financial instrument described in Note 10 is recorded at fair value, which has been
calculated based primarily on observable interest rates and yield curves for the term of the swap.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain assets could result in a different fair value measurement.

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy related to the Organization's assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value as of September 30, 2019:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Mutual funds S 3,909,458 S - S - S 3,909,458
Pooled funds held at a
community foundation - 32,822 - 32,822
S 3,909,458 S 32,822 S - S 3,942,280
Liabilities
Derivative financial
instrument S - S 714,237 S - S 714,237
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The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy related to the Organization's assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value as of September 30, 2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Mutual funds S 394,030 S - S - S 394,030
Pooled funds held at a
community foundation - 32,310 - 32,310
S 394,030 S 32,310 S - S 426,340
Liabilities
Derivative financial
instrument S - S 106,206 S - S 106,206
Note 6 - Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30, 2019 and 2018:
2019 2018
Land S 5,826,734 S 5,748,991
Buildings 28,276,650 27,659,366
Leasehold improvements 6,510,834 6,534,621
Vehicles 1,128,776 1,065,914
Furniture and equipment 4,969,536 4,512,063
Construction in progress 14,143 204,685
Total property and equipment 46,726,673 45,725,640
Less accumulated depreciation (19,476,299) (17,334,752)
Property and equipment, net S 27,250,374 S 28,390,888

In June 2010, the City of Mesa transferred title to two residential properties to the Organization. The transfer
agreements stipulate that the properties must be used as affordable rental housing and that the properties
cannot be sold without written approval from the City of Mesa for twenty years from the date of the transfers.
Approximately $233,000 of contribution revenue with donor restrictions was recognized by the Organization
during the year ended June 30, 2010 related to the transfer of these properties.

In April 2011, the City of Mesa transferred title to four residential properties to the Organization. The transfer
agreements stipulate that the properties must be used as affordable rental housing and that the properties
cannot be sold without written approval from the City of Mesa for twenty years from the date of the transfers.
Approximately $355,000 of contribution revenue with donor restrictions was recognized by the Organization
during the year ended June 30, 2011 related to the transfer of these properties.
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Note 7 - Investments in Affiliates

The balance of investments in and receivables from affiliates consisted of the following at September 30, 2019
and 2018:

2019 2018
Western Health and Wellness
Original investment in Western Health and Wellness S 15,000 S 15,000
Marc Community's share of accumulated net loss (609) (609)
Total investments in affiliates S 14,391 S 14,391

Note 8- Notes Payable — Bank Line of Credit

The Organization has a $900,000 revolving line of credit with a bank which bears interest at the bank's prime
rate minus 0.75% (4.25% and 4.50% at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively). The balance outstanding
cannot exceed 70% of the balance of outstanding receivables (as defined). This line of credit is secured primarily
by receivables and furniture and equipment of the Organization. The outstanding balance on the line of credit as
of September 30, 2019 and 2018 was $S0. Subsequent to year-end, the line of credit was extended to expire on
September 30, 2020 and was increased to $1,500,000.

The line of credit requires the Organization to maintain certain financial ratios, such as current ratio, debt
service coverage ratio, and debt to net worth ratio, as defined in the agreements.

Note 9- Derivative Financial Instrument: Interest Rate Swap

In June 2018, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement that effectively converted
approximately $13,000,000 of the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate debt to a fixed rate. The
counterparty to the swap agreement is the bank (a major U.S. financial institution) that holds the Organization's
LIBOR-based variable-rate bonds payable. Under the swap agreement, the Organization pays interest at a fixed
rate of 4.319% and, in return, receives interest at a variable rate based on 80.4% of the one-month LIBOR rate
(1.98% and 2.26% at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively) plus a margin of 1.52%. The net effect of the
swap is to fix the interest rate on $13,000,000 of the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate bond payable at
4.319%.

The interest rate swap agreement qualifies as a cash flow hedge, and accordingly, the fair value of the interest
rate swap agreement, which is adjusted regularly, is recorded in the Organization's consolidated statements of
financial position as an asset or liability, as necessary, with a corresponding adjustment to other charges. The
fair value of the Organization's interest rate swap at September 30, 2019 and 2018 was a liability totaling
approximately $714,000 and $106,000, respectively. The unrealized holding (loss)/gain on this interest rate swap
was approximately ($608,000) and $89,000 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Note 10 - Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following at September 30, 2019 and 2018:

Note payable paid off during 2019

Note payable to a bank, due in monthly interest-only installments
at 6%, final payment in August 2032; collateralized by the land.

Note payable to Arizona Health Facilities Authority, due in monthly
installments of approximately $2,400, including interest at 3.00%,
final payment in November 2022; collateralized by leasehold
improvements, equipment, and other property.

Capital lease payable, due in monthly installments of approximately
$400, including interest at 7.77%, final payment in February 2022;
collateralized by the leased equipment.

Total notes payable

Annual principal payments on the notes payable are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

Total notes payable

2019 2018
S - $ 61,155
960,000 960,000
87,406 113,329
11,379 15,500
S 1,058,785 S 1,149,984
Amount
S 31,163
32,334
30,477
4,811
960,000
S 1,058,785

Interest expense for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled approximately $632,000 and
$572,000, respectively, which includes interest on the notes payable above and on the bonds payable (Note 11).
In addition, approximately $10,000 and $13,000 of interest expense for the years ended September 30, 2019

and 2018, respectively was interest expense attributable to amortization of bond issuance costs.
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Note 11 - Bonds Payable

In December 2013, the Organization entered into loan agreements with the Industrial Development Authority of
the County of Maricopa to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A in the amount of $6,900,000 for a
term of twenty-five years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B in the amount of
$2,815,000 for a term of twenty-five years. Series 2013A and Series 2013B were collateralized by certain real
property as set forth in the agreements. The issuance of these bonds paid off the balance of the Community
Services Facilities Bond, Series 2009A.

In April 2018, the Organization entered into loan agreements with the Industrial Development Authority of the
County of Maricopa to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (Series 2018A) in the amount of
$8,285,000 for a term of thirty years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B (Series 2018B)
in the amount of $4,657,000 for a term of thirty years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series
2018C (Series 2018C) in the amount of $3,100,000 for a term of thirty years. Series 2018A and Series 2018B
(collectively, "the Bonds") are collateralized by certain real property as set forth in the agreements.

The Series 2018A Bond was issued for the purpose of refunding the outstanding Series 2013A and 2013B Bonds,
funding a debt service reserve, and paying certain costs and expenses incidental to the issuance of the new
bonds. The Series 2018B Bond was issued for the purpose of funding refinancing of existing loans and lines and
for reimbursement for the acquisition of Partners in Recovery expenditures. There are Series 2018C Bonds that
have been approved but have no draws to date.

Bonds payable consisted of the following at September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Series 2018A, due in monthly installments of approximately
$17,000 to $41,000 through May 2043, including interest
at 80.4% of the one-month LIBOR rate (1.98% and 2.26%
at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively) plus 1.81%. S 8,007,537 S 8,216,595

Series 2018B, due in monthly installments of approximately
$10,000 to $23,000 through May 2043, including interest
at 80% of the one-month LIBOR rate (1.98% and 2.26%
at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively) plus 1.81%. 4,501,038 4,618,550

Less unamortized bond issuance costs (294,953) (304,701)

S 12,213,622 S 12,530,444

Bond issuance costs were $308,993 for 2019 and 2018 and are also being amortized over the life of the bond.
No funds have been drawn on Series 2018C.
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Annual principal payments on the bonds payable are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Amount
2020 S 343,058
2021 356,247
2022 369,096
2023 382,051
2024 395,472
Thereafter 10,662,651
Less unamortized bond issuance costs (294,953)

Total bonds payable S 12,213,622

The Organization is required to maintain certain net asset, liquidity, and indebtedness ratios, and must comply
with other general covenants of the bond agreement.

Note 12 - Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following at September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Subject to Expenditure for Specified Purpose
Restrictions on donated vehicles and property S 1,177,053 S 1,177,053
Housing for low income residents 4,453,500 4,453,500
Purpose restrictions for consumer-directed services 50,000 -
Time restrictions on contributions receivable 5,625
Remodel 150,000 -
Other 24,986 45,998
5,861,164 5,676,551
Time Restrictions on Contributions Receivable 5,625 24,000
Perpetual in nature, not subject to spending policy or appropriation 10,000 10,000
Total net assets with donor restrictions S 5,876,789 S 5,710,551
Net assets with donor restrictions released from restriction include:
2019 2018
Restrictions on donated vehicles and property S - S 214,136
Other 16,107 -
Time restrictions on contributions receivable 24,000 20,997
Total net assets released from restriction S 40,107 S 235,133
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Note 13 - Commitments

The Organization leases office space, residential houses, vehicles, and equipment under various non-cancelable
operating leases that expire at various dates through December 2023. Several leases have renewal options. The
Organization also leases residential houses and equipment under various month-to-month leases.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess
of one year are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Amount
2020 S 2,873,977
2021 2,249,765
2022 1,391,667
2023 1,039,628
2024 1,008,124
Thereafter 1,347,360

Total minimum lease payments S 9,910,521

Rent expense for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled approximately $3,376,000 and
$3,518,000, respectively.

Note 14 - Concentrations
Revenue

The Organization received approximately 74% and 53% of its revenue directly from the Maricopa County RBHA
during fiscal year 2019 and 2018, respectively.

On November 2, 2017, the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System ("AHCCCS") released the AHCCCS
Complete Care Request for Proposal (RFP) which integrates physical and behavioral health care contacts under
managed care plans for the majority of the 1.9 million AHCCCS members. The integrated delivery model offers a
more cohesive health care system for members incentivizing quality health care outcomes with alternative
payment models, and leverage health information technology for improved care coordination. Additionally,
integrating physical health and behavioral healthcare contracts drives strategic, innovative health care initiatives
forward. Effective September 30, 2018, the RBHA contract was renewed to include the Arizona Complete Care,
and all lines of business are contracted with either the RBHA or MCOs into the coming year, to ensure continuity
of care for the year to come. This funding development provides greater diversification of revenue for service
lines outside of Crisis services, which will remain with the RBHA.

The Organization also received approximately 19% and 39% of its revenue directly from the Arizona Department
of Economic Security during fiscal year 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Note 15 - Employee Benefit Plans

Marc Community and Partners in Recovery sponsor a combined 403(b) defined contribution plan (the Plan)
covering employees meeting plan qualifications. The Plan provides for employer contributions based primarily
on employee participation. The total contributions made to the Plan by Marc Community and Partners in
Recovery were $264,000 and $232,000 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Marc Community and Partners in Recovery have a combined non-qualified deferred compensation plan (the
Non-Qualified 457b Plan) covering certain executives. The Non-Qualified 457b Plan provides for employer
contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Employee deferrals are limited to 85% of annual
compensation. Total contributions made to the Non-Qualified 457b Plan by the Organization were $98,000 and
$53,000 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 16 - Contingencies

Periodically, the Organization is involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of operations. In the
opinion of management based on consultations with legal counsel, losses, if any, from these matters are
covered by insurance or are immaterial to the Organization’s consolidated statements of financial position and
consolidated statements of activities.

Note 17 - Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows as of September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Current

Federal S - $ -

State - -
Deferred

Federal 21,000 (24,000)

State (11,000) (10,000)

Valuation allowance (10,000) 34,000

Total provision S - S -
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following as of September 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss S 375,000 S 365,000
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance S 375,000 S 365,000
Valuation allowance (375,000) (365,000)
Net deferred tax assets S - S -

As of September 30, 2019, the Organization has estimated federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) of
$1,597,000, which begin to expire in the year 2028. The Organization also has estimated state NOLs of $810,000,
which begin to expire in the year 2033.

For financial reporting purposes, a valuation allowance of $375,000 at September 30, 2019 and 2018 has been
established to offset deferred tax assets related to NOLs. Pursuant to income tax accounting guidance, the
Organization has established a valuation allowance against the entire net deferred tax asset. The valuation
allowance increased by $10,000 and $89,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Organization will continue to
evaluate tax assets and provide a valuation allowance until it is more likely than not to realize the tax benefit.

Note 18 - Related Party Transactions

During the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization paid for professional services from a
board member of approximately $77,000 and $32,000, respectively.

Note 19 - Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 25, 2020, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year-end, the Organization has been negatively impacted by the effects of the world-wide
coronavirus pandemic. The Organization is closely monitoring its operations, liquidity, and capital resources and
is actively working to minimize the current and future impact of this unprecedented situation. As of the date of
issuance of these financial statements, the full impact to the Organization’s financial position is not known.

Subsequent to year-end, Marc Community applied for and was granted a $4,687,500 loan under the Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP) administered by a Small Business Administration (SBA) approved partner. The loan is
uncollateralized and is fully guaranteed by the Federal government. The loan accrues interest at 1.00%, but
payments are not required to begin for six months after the funding of the loan. Marc Community is eligible for
loan forgiveness of up to 100% of the loan, upon meeting certain requirements. Marc Community intends to
take measures to maximize the loan forgiveness but cannot reasonably determine the portion of the loan that
will ultimately be forgiven.
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Subsequent to year-end, Partners in Recovery applied for and was granted a $4,500,900 loan under the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) administered by a Small Business Administration (SBA) approved partner.
The loan is uncollateralized and is fully guaranteed by the Federal government. The loan accrues interest at
1.00%, but payments are not required to begin for six months after the funding of the loan. Partners in Recovery
is eligible for loan forgiveness of up to 100% of the loan, upon meeting certain requirements. Partners in
Recovery intends to take measures to maximize the loan forgiveness but cannot reasonably determine the
portion of the loan that will ultimately be forgiven.

In January 2020, the Organization drew down additional bond debt with the Industrial Development Authority of
the County of Maricopa and issued Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018C in the amount of $1,218,750;
Series 2018C has remaining funds to be drawn of approximately $1,820,300. The Series are collateralized by
certain real property as set forth in the agreements. The proceeds from the draw down were used to finance a
property.
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Mesa, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Marc Community Resources,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and Affiliates (collectively, the Organization), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2018, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates as of September 30,
2018, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com

1850 N. Central Ave., Ste. 400 | Phoenix, AZ 85004-4624 | T 602.264.5844 | F 602.277.4845 | EOE



Other Matter — Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplemental schedules on pages 24-27 are presented for the purpose of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

@*M L7

Phoenix, Arizona
September 26, 2019



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
September 30, 2018

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,495,387
Consumer trust funds 43,685
Accounts receivable, net 2,137,552
Contributions receivable 132,446
Prepaid expenses and other 325,387
Investments 426,340
Investments in affiliates 14,391
Certificates of deposit 253,976
Property and equipment, net 28,390,888
Goodwill, less accumulated amortization of $320,127 2,881,145
Deposits 330,617
Total assets $ 49,431,814
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Consumer trust funds $ 43,685
Accounts payable 724,987
Accrued liabilities 5,141,861
Deferred revenue 1,973,584
Deferred rent 799,448
Lease incentive obligation, net 360,439
Derivative financial instrument: interest rate swap 106,206
Notes payable 1,149,984
Bonds payable, less unamortized bond issuance costs of $304,701 12,530,444
Total liabilities 22,830,638
Net Assets
Unrestricted 20,890,625
Temporarily restricted 5,700,551
Permanently restricted 10,000
Total net assets 26,601,176

$ 49,431,814




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Totals
Revenue, Support and Gains
Governmental
Arizona Department of Economic Security $ 13,447,173 $ - $ - $ 13.447,173
Arizona Department of Health Services 49,720,910 - - 49,720,910
City of Mesa 29,730 - - 29,730
Total governmental revenue 63,197,813 - - 63,197,813
Other
Service contracts 464,894 - - 464,894
Service fees 213,703 - - 213,703
United Way contributions - 24,000 - 24,000
Other contributions 362,823 16,107 - 378,930
Interest income 30,039 466 - 30,505
Loss on disposition of property and equipment (71,730) - - (71,730)
Rental income 854,150 - - 854,150
Loss on investments in affiliates (53.908) - - (53,908)
Change in value of derivative financial instrument 89.484 - - 89.484
Other 3,211,782 - - 3,211,782
Total other revenue and gains 5,101,237 40,573 - 5,141,810
Net assets released from restrictions 235,133 (235,133) - -
Total revenue, support and gains 68,534,183 (194,560) - 68,339,623
Expenses
Program services
Residential 6,987,083 - - 6,987,083
Employment services 6,589,579 - - 6,589,579
Day services 7,060,032 - - 7,060,032
Home services 6,499,658 - - 6,499,658
Other housing 594,768 - - 594,768
Outpatient clinic 33,945,795 - - 33,945,795
Total program services 61,676,915 - - 61,676,915
Supporting activities
Management and general 6,401,975 - - 6,401,975
Fundraising 45,373 - - 45,373
Total supporting activities 6,447,348 - - 6,447,348
Total expenses 68,124,263 - - 68,124,263
Operating Income 409,920 (194,560) - 215,360
Loss on Refinancing (158,856) - - (158,856)
Change in Net Assets 251,064 (194,560) - 56,504
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 20,639,561 5,895,111 10,000 26,544,672
Net Assets, End of Year $ 20,890,625 $ 5,700,551 $ 10,000 $ 26,601,176

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities
Interest expense attributable to unamortized bond issuance costs
Loss on refinancing
Net unrealized gain on investments
Change in value on derivative financial instruments
Net loss on investments in affiliates
Loss on disposition of property and equipment
Depreciation
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Amortization of lease incentive obligation
Amortization of goodwill
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Due from related parties
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deferred rent
Leasehold incentive obligation

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of assets of Partners in Recovery
Proceeds from notes receivable
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment

Net Cash used for Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings on notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Borrowing on line of credit
Payments on line of credit
Bond issuance costs
Issuance of bonds payable
Termination of bonds payable
Payments on bonds payable

Net Cash from Financing Activities

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$

56,504

12,697
158,856
(697)
(89,484)
53,908
71,730
2,327,586
11,330
(39,561)
320,127

173,322
95,780
2,997
349,797
(239,281)
(278,344)
906,000
(1,726,046)
137,197
400,000

2,704,418

(927,939)
16,782
(1,140)
10,958

677,172

(1,815,399)

(2,039,566)

1,500,000
(2,108,403)
900,000
(900,000)
(308,993)
12,942,000
(8,260,200)
(253,934)

3,510,470




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest

Acquisition of equipment through capital lease

Supplemental Schedule of Investing Activities
Acquisition of Partners in Recovery
Cash acquired
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Property and equipment
Goodwill
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Deferred rent
Notes payable
Previously held equity interest remeasured at fair value

Cash paid

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4,175,322

10,320,065

$ 14,495,387

$ 571,901

$ 31,966

$ 3,072,061
119,774
321,689

3,401,617

3,201,272
(284,180)
(2,101,624)
(1,667,760)
(525,565)
(1,143.879)
(393,405)

$ 4,000,000




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates (Marc Community) is a nonprofit corporation, incorporated in the
state of Arizona on August 6, 1957 to provide places of residence, employment services, training, education,
rehabilitation, and behavioral health services for developmentally disabled children and adults, as well as people
with severe mental illness. Marc Community provides services throughout primarily Maricopa County, Arizona.
During the year ended June 30, 2010, Marc Community acquired Advocates for the Disabled, Inc. (Advocates) by
an action by the Board of Directors of Advocates granting Marc Community the sole power to appoint directors to
the Advocates' Board. Advocates has become an inactive organization.

TecMarc, Inc. (TecMarc) is an Arizona corporation and was incorporated in March 2008 to conduct the business
of information technology sales and support and property management services. TecMarc has 1,000 shares of
authorized common stock, all of which have been issued to Marc Community at $1 per share.

During the year, The Foundation for People with Disabilities changed their name to The Marc Foundation (the
Foundation). The Foundation is a nonprofit corporation, incorporated in the state of Arizona on January 29, 1988,
to provide housing for disabled individuals in residential settings and employment training facilities throughout
Maricopa County. Marc Community is the sole member of the Foundation's Board of Directors. During the year
ended June 30, 2010, the Foundation transferred substantially all of its property to Marc Community to facilitate
the completion of bond financing.

The Village at Oasis Park — Phase [, Inc. (the Village) is a nonprofit corporation and was incorporated in the
state of Arizona in October 2009 to provide housing for disabled individuals. The Village's Board of Directors
consists of the Executive Committee of Marc Community and other individuals selected by the Executive
Committee of Marc Community.

The Village at Oasis Park — Phase 11, Inc. (the Village II) is a nonprofit corporation and was incorporated in the
state of Arizona in August 2010 to provide housing for disabled individuals. The Village II's Board of Directors
consists of the Executive Committee of Marc Community and other individuals selected by the Executive
Committee of Marc Community.

Partners in Recovery, LLC (Partners in Recovery) is a non-profit organization formed under the laws of the state
of Arizona in April 2009 as a limited liability company and has an infinite life. The Organization provides
behavioral health case management, treatment, integrated physical care and support to adults with serious mental
illnesses in Maricopa County, Arizona. The members of the Organization were Marc Community Resources, Inc.
(Marc Community), Jewish Family and Children’s Service, Inc. (JFCS), and Recovery Innovations, Inc. (RII) dba
RI International, each of which is a non-profit corporation. As of October 6, 2017, Marc Community bought out
the remaining equity partners and is now the sole member of the Organization.

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Marc Community, Advocates,

TecMarc, the Foundation, Partners in Recovery, the Village, and the Village II (collectively, the Organization).
All significant inter-organization transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents costs in excess of purchase price over the fair value of the assets of businesses acquired,
including other identifiable intangible assets.

As of October 1, 2017, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2019-06, Extending the
Private Organization Accounting Alternatives on Goodwill and Certain Identifiable Intangible Assets to Not-for-
Profit Entities. This accounting alternative allows management to elect to amortize goodwill over a 10-year life.
In accordance with the adoption of this accounting alternative for goodwill, the Organization has also elected to
test goodwill for impairment, upon the occurrence of one or more triggering events, at the Organization level. The
effect of the change in net assets for 2018 was $320,127.

Effective October 1, 2017, goodwill is amortized on the straight-line method over a period of 10 years. Goodwill
will be tested for impairment upon the occurrence of an event that would indicate that the fair value of the
Organization is below its carrying value. As of September 30, 2018, the carrying value of the Organization’s
goodwill was not considered impaired.

Investments

The Organization reports investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values, and all
investments in debt securities, at fair value. Investments at September 30, 2018 totaled approximately $426,000
all of which were invested in mutual funds. Net investment income is reported in the consolidated statement of
activities and consists of interest and dividend income and realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair
value due to the short-term nature of the items. The carrying value of promises to give due in more than one year
is based on the discounted net present value of the expected future cash receipts and approximates fair value. The
fair values of bonds and notes payable are based on the stated interest rates and approximate their carrying values.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or
include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, the Organization has not experienced
losses in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and contributions receivable is
considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding
amounts are due from Board members, governmental agencies, and foundations supportive of the Organization’s
mission.



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment over $5,000 is stated at cost. Property acquired by gift is stated at estimated
fair value at the date of the contribution. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives ranging from four to twenty-five years. In the absence of donor restrictions on how gifts of long-lived
assets must be used, the Organization does not imply time restrictions on such contributions. Costs of
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed
currently.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected
to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment during the
year ended September 30, 2018.

Deferred Revenue

Each month, the Organization receives block payment funding for behavioral health services from the Regional
Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) in Maricopa County. These funds are considered earned if total service
claims generated equal or exceed the block payments. If service claims are insufficient, the RBHA has the
contractual right to recoup the funding or characterize the deficiency as deferred revenue with an authorization to
use the funding in the next fiscal year. For the year ended September 30, 2018, the Organization has a service
claim deficiency balance of approximately $2,000,000. This amount is classified as deferred revenue on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Deferred Rent

Certain leases require escalating rent payments over the lease term. The total rent payments are divided by the
total number of months to compute an amount, which is charged to expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Deferred rent occurs when the monthly straight-line expense is greater than the monthly rent paid.

Lease Incentive Obligation

There are certain leases held by the Organization that have included provisions for lease incentives related to
tenant improvement allowances. The funding for the purchase of leasehold improvements has been recorded as
leasehold improvements, is included in property and equipment and is depreciated over the life of the lease. A
corresponding liability has been recorded for the lease incentive obligation. This obligation is being amortized
over the life of the lease with annual amortization being netted against rent expense.

Interest-Rate Swap
The Organization uses an interest-rate swap to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable (Note 8). The related

liability or asset is reported at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position, and unrealized gains
or losses are included in the consolidated statement of activities.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Self-Insurance Reserves

The Organization provides for self-insurance reserve for estimated incurred but not reported claims for its
employee health plan. This reserve, which is included in accrued liabilities on the consolidated statement of
financial position, is estimated based upon historical submission and payment data, cost trends, utilization history,
and other relevant factors.

Adjustments to reserves are reflected in the operating results in the period in which the change in estimate is
identified. At September 30, 2018, amounts reserved for these claims totaled approximately $846,000.

Governmental Revenue

The Organization has contracts with state governmental agencies and various insurance companies to provide
services to clients with developmental disabilities and severe mental illness. Revenue from these contracts is
recognized as the services are performed.

Contributions

Contributions of cash or other assets are recognized as revenue when received at the estimated fair value on the
date of contribution. Promises to give are recognized as revenue when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. Promises to give that are received with conditions are not
recognized until those conditions are substantially met, unless the likelihood that the Organization will not fulfill
the conditions is remote, in which case the contribution is recognized when the promise is made. Contributions
that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the
fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets available for use in general operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor restrictions that may or will be met by
expenditures or actions and/or the passage of time, and certain income earned on permanently restricted net
assets that has not yet been appropriated for expenditure by the Organization’s board of directors.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed restrictions that neither
expire by the passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by action of the Organization. The
restrictions stipulate that resources be maintained permanently but permit the Organization to expend the
income generated in accordance with the provisions of the agreements.

11



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Bond Issuance costs

Bond issuance costs are amortized over the period the related obligation is outstanding using the straight-line
method, which is a reasonable estimate of the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are included within
long-term debt in the consolidated statement of financial position. Amortization of bond issuance costs is included
in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Advertising

The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the year ended September 30, 2018
totaled approximately $62,000.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the consolidated statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting activities benefited, determined by specific identification and estimates of time spent
and benefits derived.

Income Tax Status

Marc Community, Advocates, the Foundation, the Village, the Village 11, and Partners in Recovery, LLC are
organized as Arizona nonprofit corporations and have been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as organizations described
in Section 501(c)(3). They qualify for charitable contributions under Section 170. Marc Community, Advocates,
the Foundation and the Village have been determined not to be private foundations under Section 509(a)(2),
509(a)(1), 509(a)(3) and 509(a)(3), respectively. Management has determined the Village Il is not a private
foundation in accordance with Section 509(a)(3). The organizations are annually required to file a Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income
tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. Advocates, the
Foundation, the Village and the Village II have determined they have no unrelated business taxable income and
have not filed the Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Returns (IRS Form 990-T), or its Arizona
equivalent, Form 99-T. Marc Community has unrelated business taxable income and has filed the Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Returns (IRS Form 990-T), and its Arizona equivalent, Form 99-T.

TecMarc accounts for income taxes under the liability method pursuant to income tax accounting guidance. Under
the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is established against the deferred tax asset
for the uncertainty of TecMarc’s ability to use the net operating tax loss carryforwards in the future.

Management believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any
uncertain tax positions that are material to the consolidated financial statements. The organizations would
recognize future accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax
expense if such interest and penalties are incurred. Marc Community and TecMarc’s income tax filings required
by federal and state authorities are no longer subject to tax examination for years ending before September 30,
2015.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is that
revenue should be recognized in a manner that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. ASU 2014-09 defines a five-step process in order to achieve this core principle which may require the
use of judgment and estimates. The entity may adopt ASU 2014-09 either by using a full retrospective approach
for all periods presented or a modified retrospective approach. Additionally, in April 2016, the FASB issued ASU
2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and
Licensing. The amendments in this standard clarify the process of identifying performance obligations and the
licensing implementation guidance. These standards are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2018, or October 1, 2019 for the Organization. The Organization has not yet selected a transition
method and is currently evaluating the impact of these standards on its financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02 to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions
(Topic 842). The ASU affects all lease transactions. The Organization as a lessee is required to recognize a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at present value of the lease payments, on the statements of
financial position. For leases greater than twelve months, the Organization as a lessee must also recognize interest
on the lease liability separately from amortization of the right-of-use asset in the statement of activities.
Repayments of the principal potion of the lease liability must be classified within financing activities and
payments of interest on the lease liability and variable lease payments within operating activities in the statement
of cash flows. Leases for less than twelve months recognize a single lease cost on a straight-line basis. The
amendments in this update are effective for years beginning after December 15, 2019, or October 1, 2020 for the
Organization. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-02 and has not
determined the effect on the financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14 to improve presentation of financial statements for nonprofit
entities. The ASU affects all nonprofit entities. The main provisions of this update that will impact the
Organization include:

e Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end
of the period, rather than for the currently required three classes. The nonprofits will report amounts for
net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. They will also be required to
present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of net
assets rather than that of the currently required three classes.

e All nonprofits will now be required to disclose an analysis of expenses by both functional and natural
classifications.

e All nonprofits will have to add disclosures regarding how they manage liquidity and information that
communications the availability of financial assets to meet cash needs for general expenditures.

13



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

This new standard will be effective for years beginning after December 15, 2017, or October 1, 2018 for the
Organization. The standard requires retrospective application.

Note 2 - Accounts Receivable and Credit Policy

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that
are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to
the allowance for doubtful accounts and a credit to accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are considered past
due 30 days after the invoice date. The Organization does not require collateral on accounts receivable balances
and does not generally charge interest on past due balances. At September 30, 2018, the allowance was
approximately $66,000.

Note 3- Conditional Promises to Give

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Organization received conditional promises to give as part of
agreements with Value Options (Magellan replaced Value Options as the RBHA contracted for Maricopa County
during the year ended June 30, 2008. Magellan was replaced by Mercy Maricopa Integrated Care during the year
ended June 30, 2014). Under the 2007 agreement, unrestricted title to two single-family residences, with an
estimated value of $607,000 at the date of the agreements, will be transferred to the Organization if certain
conditions are met. Under the 2006 agreement, unrestricted title to one single-family residence, with an estimated
value of $300,000 at the date of the agreement, will be transferred to the Organization if certain conditions are
met. The condition for the transfer of title is that the Organization functions as landlord of the residences for a
period of twenty-five years. During this period, the Organization will collect rent from the tenants and will be
responsible for repairs and maintenance on the residences. Once all conditions have been met, the Organization
will recognize the fair value of the property in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 4 - Business Combination

On October 6, 2017, Marc Community completed the purchase of Partners in Recovery resulting in 100%
ownership. Marc Community has historically accounted for the investment in Partners in Recovery as an
unconsolidated entity under the equity method of accounting. Marc Community purchased all of the assets
relating to Partners in Recovery and assumed certain trade payables, accrued liabilities and notes payable
associated with the assets being acquired. The aggregate purchase price paid was $4,000,000. The purchase of
Partners in Recovery directly aligns with the mission of Marc Community and will provide additional services to
be an integrated care provider. The goodwill of approximately $3,201,000 arising from the acquisition consists
largely of the synergies and economies of scale expected from combining the operations of Partners in Recovery
and Marc Community.

At the time of acquisition of Partners in Recovery, the investment in affiliate balance was approximately
$447,000. Marc Community remeasured is previously held 33% ownership in Partners in Recovery at fair value
in the amount of approximately $393,000 and recognized a loss of approximately $54,000 in the statement of
activities. The preliminary estimates of fair values recorded are Level 3 inputs which have been determined by
management based on various market and income analysis and recent asset appraisals.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date:

Cash acquired $ 3,072,061
Accounts receivable 119,774
Prepaid expenses and other 321,689
Property and equipment 3,401,617
Goodwill 3,201,272
Total identifiable assets acquired 10,116,413
Accounts payable (284,180)
Accrued liabilities (2,101,624)
Deferred revenue (1,667,760)
Deferred rent (525,565)
Notes payable (1,143,879)
Previously held equity interest remeasured at fair value (393,405)
Net assets acquired $ 4,000,000

Note 5- Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30, 2018:

Land $ 5,748,991
Buildings 27,659,366
Leasehold improvements 6,534,621
Vehicles 1,065,914
Furniture and equipment 4,512,063
Construction in progress 204,685
Total property and equipment 45,725,640

Less accumulated depreciation (17,334,752)
Property and equipment, net $ 28,390,888

In June 2010, the City of Mesa transferred title to two residential properties to the Organization. The transfer
agreements stipulate that the properties must be used as affordable rental housing and that the properties cannot be
sold without written approval from the City of Mesa for twenty years from the date of the transfers.
Approximately $233,000 of temporarily restricted contribution revenue was recognized by the Organization
during the year ended June 30, 2010 related to the transfer of these properties.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2018

In April 2011, the City of Mesa transferred title to four residential properties to the Organization. The transfer
agreements stipulate that the properties must be used as affordable rental housing and that the properties cannot be
sold without written approval from the City of Mesa for twenty years from the date of the transfers.
Approximately $355,000 of temporarily restricted contribution revenue was recognized by the Organization
during the year ended June 30, 2011 related to the transfer of these properties.

Note 6 - Investments in Affiliates

The balance of investments in and receivables from affiliates consisted of the following at September 30, 2018:

Western Health and Wellness

Original investment in Western Health and Wellness $ 15,000
Marc Community's share of accumulated net loss (609)

14,391

Total investments in affiliates $ 14,391

Note 7- Notes Payable — Bank Line of Credit

The Organization has a $900,000 revolving line of credit with a bank which bears interest at the bank's prime rate
(5.25% at September 30, 2018). The balance outstanding cannot exceed 70% of the balance of outstanding
receivables (as defined). This line of credit is secured primarily by receivables and furniture and equipment of the
Organization and expires August 31, 2019. The outstanding balance on the line of credit as of September 30, 2018
was $0.

The line of credit requires the Organization to maintain certain financial ratios, such as current ratio, debt service
coverage ratio, and debt to net worth ratio, as defined in the agreements.

Note 8 - Derivative Financial Instrument: Interest Rate Swap

In June 2018, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement that effectively converted
approximately $13,000,000 of the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate debt to a fixed rate. The
counterparty to the swap agreement is the bank (a major U.S. financial institution) that holds the Organization's
LIBOR-based variable-rate bonds payable. Under the swap agreement, the Organization pays interest at a fixed
rate of 4.319% and, in return, receives interest at a variable rate based on 80.4% of the one-month LIBOR rate
(2.26% at September 30, 2018) plus a margin of 1.81%. The net effect of the swap is to fix the interest rate on
$13,000,000 of the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate bond payable at 4.319%.

The interest rate swap agreement qualifies as a cash flow hedge, and accordingly, the fair value of the interest rate
swap agreement, which is adjusted regularly, is recorded in the Organization's consolidated statement of financial
position as an asset or liability, as necessary, with a corresponding adjustment to other charges. The fair value of
the Organization's interest rate swap at September 30, 2018 was a liability totaling approximately $106,000. The
unrealized holding gain on this interest rate swap was approximately $89,000 for the year ended September 30,
2018.
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Note 9 - Notes Payable
Notes payable consisted of the following at September 30, 2018:

Note payable to finance company, due in monthly installments
of approximately $800, including interest at 1.90%, final
payment in August 2022; collateralized by a vehicle
and equipment. $ 37,382

Note payable to a bank, due in monthly interest-only installments
at 6%, final payment in August 2032; collateralized by the land. 960,000

Note payable to Arizona Health Facilities Authority, due in monthly
installments of approximately $2,400, including interest at 3.00%,
final payment in November 2022; collateralized by leasehold
improvements, equipment, and other property. 113,329

Capital lease payable, due in monthly installments of approximately
$400, including interest at 7.77%, final payment in February 2022;
collateralized by the leased equipment. 15,500

Capital lease payable, due in monthly installments of approximately
$1,600, including interest at 12.20%, final payment in April 2019;
collateralized by the leased equipment. 10,498

Capital lease payable, due in monthly installments of approximately
$1,300, including interest at 6.68%, final payment in August 2019;
collateralized by the leased equipment. 13,275

Total notes payable $§ 1,149,984

Annual principal payments on the notes payable are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Amount
2019 $ 63,098
2020 40,623
2021 41,975
2022 39,476
2023 4,810
Thereafter 960,002

Total notes payable § 1,149,984

Interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2018 totaled approximately $572,000, which includes interest
on the notes payable above and on the bonds payable (Note 10). In addition, approximately $13,000 of interest
expense for the year ended September 30, 2018 was interest expense attributable to amortization of bond issuance
costs.
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Note 10 - Bonds Payable

In December 2013, the Organization entered into loan agreements with the Industrial Development Authority of
the County of Maricopa to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A in the amount of $6,900,000 for a
term of twenty-five years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B in the amount of
$2,815,000 for a term of twenty-five years. Series 2013A and Series 2013B were collateralized by certain real
property as set forth in the agreements. The issuance of these bonds paid off the balance of the Community
Services Facilities Bond, Series 2009A.

In April 2018, the Organization entered into loan agreements with the Industrial Development Authority of the
County of Maricopa to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A (Series 2018A) in the amount of
$8,285,000 for a term of thirty years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B (Series 2018B)
in the amount of $4,657,000 for a term of thirty years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018C
(Series 2018C) in the amount of $3,100,000 for a term of thirty years. Series 2018A and Series 2018B
(collectively, "the Bonds") are collateralized by certain real property as set forth in the agreements. The
Organization borrowed $8,285,000 under Series 2018A, and approximately $8,217,000 was outstanding at
September 30, 2018. The Organization borrowed approximately $4,700,000 under Series 2018B, and
approximately $4,619,000 was outstanding at September 30, 2018. Bond issuance costs were $308,993 and are
also being amortized over the life of the bond. No funds have been drawn on Series 2018C.

The Series 2018A Bond was issued for the purpose of refunding the outstanding Series 2013 A and 2013B Bonds,
funding a debt service reserve, and paying certain costs and expenses incidental to the issuance of the new bonds.
The Series 2018B Bond was issued for the purpose of funding refinancing of existing loans and lines and for
reimbursement for the acquisition of Partners in Recovery expenditures.

Principal and interest on the Bonds are payable monthly. Series 2018A is due in monthly principal amounts of
approximately $17,000 to $41,000 through May 2043. Series 2018A bears interest at 80.4% of the one-month
LIBOR rate (2.26% at September 30, 2018) plus 1.81%. 2018B is due in monthly principal payments starting in
June 2018 in amounts of approximately $10,000 to $23,000 through May 2043. Series 2018B bears interest at
80% of the one-month LIBOR rate (2.26% at September 30, 2018) plus 1.81%.

Annual principal payments on the bonds payable are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30, Amount
2019 $ 326,570
2020 343,058
2021 356,247
2022 369,096
2023 382,051
Thereafter 11,058,124
Less unamortized bond issuance costs (304,701)

Total bonds payable $ 12,530,445

The Organization is required to maintain certain net asset, liquidity, and indebtedness ratios, and must comply
with other general covenants of the loan agreement.
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Note 11 - Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following at September 30, 2018:

Restrictions on donated vehicles and property $ 1,177,053
Housing for low income residents 4,453,500
Time restrictions on contributions receivable 24,000
Other 45,998

Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 5,700,551

Temporarily restricted net assets released from restriction include:

Restrictions on donated vehicles and property $ 214,136
Time restrictions on contributions receivable 20,997
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 235,133

Permanently restricted net assets are to be maintained in perpetuity. The income from these funds is temporarily
restricted for use in promoting independent living.

Note 12 - Commitments
The Organization leases office space, residential houses, vehicles, and equipment under various non-cancelable
operating leases that expire at various dates through December 2023. Several leases have renewal options. The

Organization also leases residential houses and equipment under various month-to-month leases.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess
of one year are scheduled as follows:

Operating
Year Ending September 30, Leases

2019 $ 3,142,101
2020 2,781,452
2021 2,244,580
2022 1,335,506
2023 1,015,261
Thereafter 2,355,484

Total minimum lease payments $ 12,874,384

Rent expense for the year ended September 30, 2018 totaled approximately $3,518,000.
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Note 13 - Concentrations

Revenue

The Organization received significant portions of its total revenue for the year ended September 30, 2018 from the
Arizona Department of Economic Security (DES) and the Regional Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) through

contracts that are renewed annually.

The percentages of total revenue and the amounts of accounts receivable (before the allowance for doubtful
accounts) from DES and RBHA are as follows as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018:

Total Accounts
Revenue Receivable
DES 20% $ 1,054,859
RBHA 73% 271,432
Total 92% $ 1,326,291

Note 14 - Employee Benefit Plans

Marc Community sponsors a defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering employees meeting plan qualifications.
The Plan provides for employer contributions based primarily on employee participation. The total contributions
made to the Plan by Marc Community were $0 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Marc Community has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan (the Marc Community Non-Qualified 457b
Plan) covering certain executives. The Marc Community Non-Qualified 457b Plan provides for employer
contributions at the discretion of the board of directors of Marc Community. Employee deferrals are limited to
85% of annual compensation. Total contributions made to the Marc Community Non-Qualified 457b Plan by the
Organization were $53,000 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Partners in Recovery sponsors a 403(b) defined contribution plan (the 403(b) Plan) covering employees meeting
plan qualifications. The 403(b) Plan provides for employer contributions based primarily on employee
participation. The total contributions made to the 403(b) Plan by Partners in Recovery were approximately
$232,000 for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Partners in Recovery has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan (the Partners in Recovery Non-Qualified
457b Plan) covering certain executives. The Partners in Recovery Non-Qualified 457b Plan provides for employer
contributions at the discretion of the board of directors of Partners in Recovery. Employee deferrals are limited to
the lesser of $15,000 or 100% of annual compensation. There have been no contributions to the Partners in
Recovery Non-Qualified 457b Plan by Partners in Recovery for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Subsequent to year-end, the individual defined contribution plans for Marc Community and Partners in Recovery

were terminated and the Organization created a new defined contribution plan to cover employees from both
entities.
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Note 15 - Contingencies

Periodically, the Organization is involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of operations. In the
opinion of management based on consultations with legal counsel, losses, if any, from these matters are covered
by insurance or are immaterial to the Organization’s consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of activities.

Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial statements. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal,
or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value
refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Organization
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active,
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated
inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, the Organization develops inputs
using the best information available in the circumstances.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized within
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account
factors specific to the asset or liability. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the
pricing transparency of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to an assessment of the quality, risk or
liquidity profile of the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value hierarchy requires the use of
observable market data when available. In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been determined based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:
Investments

A significant portion of the Organization’s investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they are
comprised of open-end mutual funds with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Organization's derivative financial instrument described in Note 7 is recorded at fair value, which has been
calculated based primarily on observable interest rates and yield curves for the term of the swap.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine the fair value of certain assets could result in a different fair value measurement.

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy related to the Organization's assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value as of September 30, 2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Mutual funds $ 394,030 $ - $ - $ 394,030
Pooled funds held at a
community foundation - 32,310 - 32,310
$ 394,030 $ 32,310 $ - $ 426,340
Liabilities
Derivative financial
instrument $ - $ (106,206) $ - $ (106,206)

Note 17 - Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows as of September 30, 2018:

Current:

Federal $ -
State -

Deferred:
Federal (24,000)
State (10,000)
Valuation allowance 34,000

Total provision $ -
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The Organization’s actual income tax (benefit) expense for the year ended September 30, 2018 differs from the
expected amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 21% to net (loss) income before
income taxes for the following reasons:

Computed tax (benefit) expense at 21% $ (24,000)

State taxes at 5.85% (10,000)

Change in valuation allowance 34,000
$ -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following as of September 30, 2018:

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss $ 314,000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Fixed assets $ .
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 314,000
Valuation allowance (314,000)
Net deferred tax assets $ -

As of September 30, 2018, the Organization has estimated federal and state net operating loss carryforwards
(NOLs) of $1,493,767 which begin to expire in the year 2028.

For financial reporting purposes, a valuation allowance of $314,000 at September 30, 2018, has been established
to offset deferred tax assets related to NOLs. Pursuant to income tax accounting guidance, the Organization has
established a valuation allowance against the entire net deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance increased by

$89,000 in 2018. The Organization will continue to evaluate tax assets and provide a valuation allowance until it
is more likely than not to realize the tax benefit.

Note 18 - Subsequent Events

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 26, 2019, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year end, a major funding source of the Organization cut funding by approximately $2,500,000.

Subsequent to year end, the Organization entered in to a 3-year contract for services with an approximate cost of
$300,000 per year or approximately $900,000 over the course of the contract.

Subsequent to year end, the Organization changed their name to Copa Health, Inc.

23



Supplementary Information
September 30, 2018

Marc Community Resources, Inc.
and Affiliates

eidebailly.com



vC

vig'ler'or  § (208°€1+°0) $ SSO'ELEL $ 9L9°TTlT $ SSO'LLY'T $ LSYTLY $ 8¥S0OLI $ 1€9°8TT6€ $19sse Jou
pue santjiqer| [ejoL
9L1°109°9T (£0¥°L9€) r9°€9¢€ L61°L80°T SLO09Y'C (0TT'StH) (6L9°€TET) 795°9Th €T (J1oy3p) s19sSE JAU [BI0],
000°01 - - - - 000°01L - - PAOLNSA APUSUBULID]
1§S°00L°S - - 00€VI1°C 00T'6£€°C 168°6¢ - 091°L1T°1 paroLnsar Aureroduway,
$79°068°0C (£0t°L9€) ¥79°€9¢ (€01°L2) SL8°0T1 (I11°68) (6L9°€TE1) 201°60T°CT pajoLnsaIun [e3o0],
- (000°T) - - - - 000°1 - 3001S UOWWo))
$T9°068°0C (£0t°99€) ¥¥9°€9¢ (€01°L0) SL8°0Tl (I11°68) (6L9%TET) 201°60T°CT pejoLisaIun
S19SSVY 19N
8€9°0€8°CC (66€°9¥0°C) 110°010°L 6LV SE 08S°L1 1L9°L1S LTTY6VL 690°T08°S1 SONIIqel] [eI0L
PPy 0esTI - - - - - - Yy 0€esTl 10L*P0E$ JO $1500 douUENSSI pUoq
paznaoweun ssa| 9[qeAed spuog
7866111 - T09°CIT°l - - - - 78¢€°LE s[qeAed sajoN
90901 - - - - - - 902901 dems ogexjsororur
UWINISUL [BIOUBUL} SABALI(
6£7°09€ - 6£¥°09¢ - - - - - 19U “‘UONESI[QO SANUIOUI 9S8
8VY'66L - 116°6L9 LES611 a1 paLRjad
¥8S°€L6'T - IST'819°T - - - - X2 4993 ONUSAI paLrja(d
198°T¥1°S - ¥01°696°C €ILE 716 T6I°LI LLE'6T €95°TCIT SINIIQeI] PanIddY
- (66€°910°7) 18L°%€ ¥81°8C srol 6L1°00S 6LS €9P°1 v76°8 sanued pajera1 03 ang
L86'VTL - €20°6£C 8s°¢c 91T - 1LT1 S68°LLY s[qeAed spunoddy
S89°cY $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ S89°€r $ SpUNy 3snij Iswmsuoy
sonrIqery
S19SSV 19N pue sonI[Iqery
vig'ier'er  § (Z08°€1¥'0) $ SS9OELE L $ 9L9°TTIT $ SSO'LLY'T $ ISYTLY $ 8¥SOLI $ 1€9°8TT6€  §$ Ss1osse [e10L
L19°0€€ - 80L°€TT $99°¢ YE6' Y - 110°S 66T°€6 susodo(q
SPI°188°C - - - - - - SYI‘188°C [MpooH
888°06€°8C - $96°€8S°€E £88°680°C TS9V8€ET - 965°0€ T6L10€°0T 10u quowdinba pue Auadoi
9L6°€ST - - - - - - 9L6°€ST nsodap jo sejedynIe)
16€V1 (€0¥°L9€E) - - - - - Y6L°18€ SOIRIIJ Ul SJUSUISIAU]
ove9Ty - - - - o1€ce - 0€0°V6€ SjuaUISIAU]
L8E'STE - L¥0°08 - - L08'6 - €€6°6€T Toy1o pue sasuadxo predai
v Tel - - - - - - o Cel S[qeAlada1 suonnqIIuon
- (66€°9¥0°T) Sov - - €€6°L L91 ¥68°LE0°T sonted pajefor woy ancg
TSSILELT - €65°56 8LL - 000°9 1esLe 099°L00°C 19U “9[qRAISOR1 SUNOJDY
$89°ey - - - - - - $89°¢r SpUny Isny Jounsuos
LBES6Y VI $ - $ LEG668E'E $ 0S€°8T $ 690°88 $ 10¥7°91+ $ €5T°LO1 $ LLESO¥ 01 $ sjudeAInbs yses pue ysed
NENN
pajepIjosuo)) suoneurwuig DT “AIOA0IRY ouf ‘I dseyd ouf T aseyd sanIIqesiq QU] “DIBJAOQ], pajqesi dy)
ur s1ued Naed SiseQ Nied siseQ ym 10J S9)BIOAPY
e OSe[[IA 18 93e[IA 91doad 101 OUJ ‘SA0INOSAY
uonepuno,f Aunuuo)) dIeN
810C ‘0¢ Toquardag

uoInIsSO4 [eIOUBUL] JO JUSWAIL)S SUNEPI[OSU0))
SOIBI[I}JV PUEB "OUJ ‘S90Jn0SY Aunuwiwio)) dIej



¢¢

9L1°109°9C  $  (€0¥°L9¢©) P19 €9¢ $ L61°L80°C SLO'09%°C (0TT'st) $  (6L9°€Te D) $ 959ty eTc $ 1ed X JO puy ‘(rge() s19ssVY 10N
LI VS 9T (cereol’ D €ELCO1'T 6L6 V61T YLO9ST 06°011 (620 ¥9C° 1) YL 6£6°CC Ted X jo Burumsdag ‘(Jogad) 19SSV 1N
Y05 9¢ 0€L°ST8 (681°8¢8) (T8L°LOT) (666°€01) (reriosn) (059°69) 818°98% S19SSV 1N Ul 95uey)
- - [CTaNaaid) - - - - SYI Evy'1 SJer[ye Woly/0) uonnqrusIq
(958°8sD) - - - - - - (958°8S1) SuroueUaI UO SSOT
09€°S1C 0€L°ST8 659°V19 (T8LLOTD) (666°€01) erosn (059°6S) WLy L6L) swoduy Suneredo
€9C Y189 (998°%9C° 1) [€9°seehe csTlIT r8°s0T 8LTSEE 061°L0C 9€6°€60°vE sasuadxa [e10],
SYELvy 9 (12L°8¢9) P8 66L 1 - - 8T SEE - LY6'0S6V sonianoe Sunroddns [ejo,
€LESY - - - - - - €LESY Sursterpun,
SL6'TOV9 (12L°8€9) Pr8°66L°T - - 8LTs€EE - VLS S06 Y [210UST pue JuSWOSEUR
sonIAnOY Sunroddng
SL69L9°19 (S+1°929) L8L'SESTE csTlIT H8°S0T - 061°L0C 686 Ch 1 6C sooraes uressoxd [ejo],
S6LSY6'EE (808°€LS) L8L'SESTTE - - - - 918°€86'1 arurpo yuaneding
89LV6S - - °sTIIT T8°s0T - - VLO'LLY Suisnoy YO
859°66°9 (LE99Y) - - - - 061°L0C SOT°6£€°9 SOOIAISS SWIOH
TE€0°090°L - - - - - - TE0°090°L saoIALRS Ae(q
6L5°685°9 oL’s) - - - - - 6LT°S6S°9 S901A19S JuswAo[dwyg
€80°L86°9 - - - - - - €80°L86°9 [eNUPISaY
SOO1AIOS WeIS0o1d
sosuadxg
€79°6£€°89 [CHEIZ2) 06C°0S6 € 0LV €01 P8 101 ST 6LT oS LiT 9t 96T €€ SuIeS pue ANUSARI [eJO ],
018 I¥I'S (9€1°6Eh) L9TSTT T 0LV €01 €78 101 ST 6LL 0SS L1 CTLY'ET8'T Sures pue dNUSAJI 1[I0 [eI0],
T8LTICE (S6v°65L) Y0t €60°C L16'1 ccece - oS LI T T161°9CL'T EcliTe)
81°68 - - - - - - 81°68 juswnsul [eroueuly
QATIBALISP JO anjfeA ur Dwﬂd&U
(806°€S) 0€L°ST8 - - - - - (8€9°6L8) sejeryye ut
SJUSUISOAUT WOLJ SSO
0ST¥S8 - 800°0CI 9t<S 101 0LS 66 - - 920°cEsS QUWIOOUT [LIUSY
(oeL’1L) - SL8'S - - - - (€09°LL) yusurdmbae pue Ayredoxd
Jo uonisodsip uo (ssop)/uren)
S0S°0€ - 16T°s L 81 Y0€'€ - SS8°IT Swooul 3SAIUL
0£6°8LE - 689 - - 0S8°SLI - 16€°C0T suonnqIuod YO
000tC - - - - - - 000°tC suonnqLIuod ABA\ PayUN
€0LEIT (1L£°508) - - - - - YLO'61L S90J OIAIOS
Y6819 - - - - - - 6819t SIOBIUOD OIAIDS
peliilg)
€I8°L61°€9 - €C0°STLCTE - - - - 06L TLY 0E SNUSASI [EJUSITISAOT [€IOT,
0€L°6T - - - - - - 0€L°6C BSIIN JO A1D
016°0TL 6 - €20°sTLTE - - - - L88°S66°91 SIOIAIOS [I[EdH
Jo juounredoq vuoZLIY
SLTLVYET  $ - - $ - - - $ - $ LT LYY €T $ Amods dTouodyq
Jo HQOEEQQD BUOZIYY
[eIUSWILIDAOD)
suren) pue SNUIAIY
paeprjosuo) suoneurwi|g DT “AIDA0IY ouf ‘1] aseyd ouf T aseyd sanIfqesiq OUJ “DIBIAOJ], pajqesiq sy}
ur souaed NIed SiseQ JIed siseQ yim 10J S9IBD0APY
Je ITR[[IA e 93e[IA ardoad 103 “OUJ ‘S90IN0SAY
uonepuno, Arunuwuro)) dIBJA
810T ‘0¢ Toquardag

SOINIAIOY JO JUSWAIR)S Suneprjosuo))
SOIBI[I}JV PUEB "OUJ ‘S90Jn0SY Aunuwiwio)) dIej



9¢

€81°8H 91 - €81°8¥ 91 YES'ETTT 1¥8°0Z8°t £69°876°1 T€0'8€9°Y €80°LI8°E
¥8T919 - ¥8T919 TLT19 122°98C SS8'6v T9L°6ET vLI'6L
SE0°SHY - SE0°SHY £60°1C Y6L 061 80€°6S 61T Y11 12L°9S
TITSys - [4889% 609°96 SPESs1 vLT'T6 TLTEST TI9°L8T
909°817 - 909°8¥1 16T°5€ 69L°991 8ST61 8STYL 0€0°€ST
611°LS - 611°LS 8509 601°8C See 668°1C 8IL
10879 - 108°+9 796°8€1 - 989°L 269181 19%°91
9S€°190°1 - 95€°190°1 L8IEL 901°Z€1 955°081 18€76T 9TI°18¢€
0€6°610°1 - 0€6'6¥0°1 $88°0S vL0°'881 680°€1C £75°081 6€€°L1Y
TOL'8SST - TOL'8SS'T TT8°06 sTeteor S0€°TTT 1°LSY 880°68€
8€TITL'6 - 8ETITL6 SSE9P9 860°0¥C°€ LTOVOT'T 7¥6°069°C ¥18°6€0°C
819°968 - 819°968 T91°LS L80°0€€ vLEITL LIT6LT 8L8°89¢C
110°016C - 110°016C - 110°016C - - -
0L6°0€Y - 0L6°0€Y - - 0L6°0EY - -
0r9°9v1 - 0¥9°or1 09%°S - - 08€°91 008°+Cl
1LL°S99 - 1LL°S99 T00°S1 - €89°15S 900°St 080°tS
8TTILIY - 8TT'IL9Y 1€L°89S - - Ivr°01ST 950°T6S°1
£29°6£€°89 920°99€°0S L6S'ELOLI TIS6LO'L 6SLLLY'S 61€°069°1 €SLIVL'S YSTY86°E
656'966 8% 656'966°8Y - - - - - -
SS8°1T SS8°IT - - - - - -
£85°0SY°'E TITLYEL 1LE°€01°T 658101 LS8°109 recore 176°19L 08€16T
9TTOLY'SI - $ 9TTOLY'S1 €59vL6 $ T06°'SL8Y $ $86°6YE’l $ TI86LOY vL8689°€ $
e, VHE joenu0) SJIAIRS JuowAordwyg (orur)) asnqy SUIAL] SIIIAIDS
0} pajejaIun) VHY 11 [9A9T :Koualy Qoueisqng Arunuuo)) juanedinQ
SONIATIOY [elo1-qng dAIsuU] [[] 90IAIOS /e QAISuU] [[]
ssauisng A[[eIUSIN A[SNOLIDS Aunuo) [IUSIN [BIOUID) A[[eIUSIN A[SNOLIDS
[enUdPISY wdnedino
VHAY-UON VHad

sasuadxs
SAOIAIRG [BOIUI]D) [2}0IqNS

sasuadxa

SOIIAILS [BOIUI[O YO
uonerdaidaq
Kouednooo/Ay1[1oe
uonepodsuer)/[oAe1],

SIIAIRS

OpISINO/[BUOISSAJOI]
J10qe] 10BNU0d/dWI ],
sonewWLIOUl/SWIR[Y/A1[en)
suonedp
pareja1-aa4o1dwyg

loqe] [e103qNg

uorsiazadng
s)siferoads [euonedoA VS
S AN ‘SISIIRIYIAS] “ISIS0[0YIAS
Teuoissajoidered Hg
[euorssajord Hg
1HE
:sofem
:sosuadxy Sa01AIS [BOTUI]D)

sosuadxg
ANUIANY [€10],

VHEY 0
PolB[oIU[) SONIANOY SSouIsng
AUI0oU] JSAIAU]

ANUAANY IOYI0

anuaAdy VHAY

QNUAY

810 ‘0€ Joquuaydag papug 1ea g

sosuadxy pue soNUSAY JO [NpaYos Suneprjosuo))

SOIBI[I}JV PUEB "OUJ ‘S90Jn0SY Aunuwiwio)) dIej



LT

66'1C €50 v0'61 18°0 IL'C 061 (wes3oxd 4q)
SAIENSIUIWPY = S,H.LA

1012 L1'1 000 vIL 8¢9 €9 (uresSoxd £q)
uoddng [earur|) - SH LA

yLEEE 61'LT 00°0S 8€'1C 8€720C 6b'CE (uwres3oxd £q)

SIOIAIOS [BOTUILD) - SALA

$05°9$ $ 181°6¥S $ (LL9'T6Y) $ (00t'9L7) $ 11L°TS1 $ (0TL'€9%) $ 668°60% $ (L91°51¢) $ BERNY
JON UI (9SBAII9P) ASLAIOU]
611°€87°89 S¥8°918°61 YLT99¥°81 T16°6SE’l 8¥0°GTES 6€0VS1T $S8°1€€°S 12r'66TY sasuadxy €10,

1LS'LLO'8E 6L1°650°9€ T60°810°C 8LETEL LOTH0S 9¥€°50T 7T8°€69 8€ECT8Y sasuadxyg
QATIRSIUIPY [101qNS

6L1°650°9€ 6LY°650°9€ - - - - - - VHAY 01

PaJB[aIUN SONIATIOR SSAUISNE

ST eor - TsTcor 8eelE €L8FEL 119°8% LYT Y91 (X140 sosuadxa joarrpur Y10

601°18 - 601°18 96€°S 00t°61 0LE'8 78T°8T 199°61 uorneralda(

LOT'IL - LOTIL 808t 81791 6SY'L 0T'se 0TS°LI Kouednaoo/Aroeg

SHTS - SHTS 11c'e L€LST 186t 67891 00L°11 uonepodsuen/[oael],

YLOEV] - YLOEV] 1068 8Ty L08°€E1 5991 143 443 SOJIAISS OpISINO/[BUOISS2JOI]

OVL'SLT - ovL'SLL TILTL S08°1Y 891°81 98¢€°19 SLY'TY pajejer-oakordwg

TSTT00°T - TST100°T T10°L9 868 ¥€T 0S6°€01 yTT1s€e L91°¥¥T soLees
QANRNSIUTWPY

99€°LSLET 99€°LSLET - - - - - - VHEY 01
paye[a1u) SANIANDY Ssaulsnyg

e10], VHII 1oeNUOD) FERITNEN JudwAordwy (o)) asnqy SUIAIT SIIIAIDG
0} paje[arun) VHSA 11 [9AR] ”>0E0w< ueIsqng \ntEBEEOU uﬁ@ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁu
SANIANDY elo-qns QAISUUY [T AJIAIRS /YieaHq SAIsuAUT [T
ssauisng AJTeIUDIN A[SNOLIDS Arunuwuwo)) [RIUSIA [BISUDD) A[TeIUSIN AJSNOLIDS
[enuapISayY ucwﬁwmﬁﬁu
VHAY-UON VHaY

810C “0¢ 1quaydeg papug 1esx
(panunuoo) sasuadxy pue SINUIAY JO S[NPAYDS TunNEepIjosuo))

SOJRI[IJJY PUB OUJ ‘S90IN0SY AJUNWWO)) dIBJA



Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2017

Marc Community Resources, Inc.
and Affiliates

eidebailly.com



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Table of Contents

September 30, 2017
Independent AUAItOr’S REPOTt........coouiiiiiiiiiiieeie ettt ettt ettt s e st e e e te e s e ebe e be e se e seessbesneessaesasennseenns 1
Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Financial POSItION .......c.ceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeie ettt sttt 3
Consolidated Statement Of ACHVITIES .....cviiviiiiieiieerierieseert ettt e st e e e et e e te e e erbe e beesseesseesssesssesssesssesssesssesssesnseans 4
Consolidated Statement of Functional EXPenses ..........cecuiiuieiriiiiiiieeie et 5
Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS.......c.coviiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt sttt st enseeseens 6
Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemeEnts...........cccvevieriierieiiiiieeiee ettt re e ere e ereebe e beesseessaessns 7
Supplementary Information
Consolidating Statement of Financial POSIION .........cceevieriiiriiirienienie ettt 22
Consolidating StatemMent Of ACLIVILIES .....cccuiirieriiieiiieitiece ettt ettt et e st e st e st e setessteentessseesbeebeesseeseenseensens 23

Consolidating Schedule of Revenues and EXPenses..........ccoeoviririeieiiiieieee et s 24



EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates
Mesa, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Marc Community Resources,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and Affiliates (collectively, the Organization), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2017, and the related consolidated
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates as of September 30,
2017, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
1850 N. Central Ave., Ste. 400 | Phoenix, AZ 85004-4624 | T602.264.5844 | F 602.277.4845 | EOE



Other Matter — Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplemental schedules on pages 22-25 are presented for the purpose of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

ijo/zﬁu@ F¥%

Phoenix, Arizona
August 15,2018



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
September 30, 2017

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

$ 10,320,065

Consumer trust funds 69,972
Accounts receivable, net 2,202,430
Due from related parties 95,780
Contributions receivable 135,443
Notes receivable 16,782
Prepaid expenses and other 353,495
Investments 612,053
Investments in affiliates 461,704
Certificates of deposit 252,836
Property and equipment, net 26,218,394
Deposits 91,336

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 40,830,290

Liabilities
Consumer trust funds $ 69,972
Accounts payable 719,151
Accrued liabilities 2,309,689
Deferred revenue 2,168,556
Derivative financial instrument: interest rate swap 195,690
Notes payable 582,542
Bonds payable, less unamortized bond issuance costs of $163,340 8,240,018
Total liabilities 14,285,618

Net Assets
Unrestricted 20,639,561
Temporarily restricted 5,895,111
Permanently restricted 10,000
Total net assets 26,544,672

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$ 40,830,290




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2017

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Totals
Revenue, Support and Gains
Governmental
Arizona Department of Economic Security $ 12,705,591 $ - $ - $ 12,705,591
Arizona Department of Health Services 15,693,979 - - 15,693,979
City of Mesa 27.412 - - 27,412
Total governmental revenue 28,426,982 - - 28,426,982
Other
Service contracts 398,123 - - 398,123
Service fees 808,548 - - 808,548
Leisure World service contract 150,114 - - 150,114
United Way contributions 6,999 20,997 - 27.996
Other contributions 131,277 114,445 - 245,722
In-kind contributions 18,387 - - 18,387
Interest income 19,356 125 - 19,481
Gain on disposition of property and equipment 16,500 - - 16,500
Rental income 693,888 - - 693,888
Gain on investments in affiliates 84,667 - - 84,667
Change in value of derivative financial instrument 206,360 - - 206,360
Other 1,506,145 - - 1,506,145
Total other revenue and gains 4,040,364 135,567 - 4,175,931
Net assets released from restrictions 86,169 (86,169) - -
Total revenue, support and gains 32,553,515 49,398 - 32,602,913
Expenses
Program services
Residential 6,827,184 - - 6,827,184
Employment services 6,126,482 - - 6,126,482
Day services 6,664,329 - - 6,664,329
Home services 5,272,393 - - 5,272,393
Other housing 589,125 - - 589,125
Outpatient clinic 2,156,973 - - 2,156,973
Total program services 27,636,486 - - 27,636,486
Supporting activities
Management and general 4,411,500 - - 4,411,500
Fundraising 94,560 - - 94,560
Total supporting activities 4,506,060 - - 4,506,060
Total expenses 32,142,546 - - 32,142,546
Change in Net Assets 410,969 49,398 - 460,367
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 20,228,592 5,845,713 10,000 26,084,305
Net Assets, End of Year $ 20,639,561 $ 5895111 $ 10,000 $ 26,544,672

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2017

Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities
Interest expense attributable to unamortized bond issuance costs
Interest income on notes receivable
Net unrealized gain on investments
Change in value on derivative financial instruments
Net gain on investments in affiliates
Gain on disposition of property and equipment
Depreciation
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Due from related parties
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of property and equipment

Net Cash used for Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings on notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Payments on bonds payable

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplmental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest

Acquisition of vehicle through note payable

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$ 460,367

(21,156)
(282)
(88,185)
(206,361)
(84,667)
(16,500)
1,609,088
20,336

(544,384)
(20,118)

(102,743)
112,390
(25,317)

(311,337)
(97,930)
489,379

1,172,580

(68,709)
289,011
(581,419)

(361,117)

525,000
(129,231)
(243,171)

152,598

964,061

9,356,004

$ 10,320,065

$ 362,766
$ 47,202




Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Affiliates (Marc Community) is a nonprofit corporation, incorporated in the
state of Arizona on August 6, 1957 to provide places of residence, employment services, training, education,
rehabilitation, and behavioral health services for developmentally disabled children and adults, as well as people
with severe mental illness. Marc Community provides services throughout primarily Maricopa County, Arizona.
During the year ended June 30, 2010, Marc Community acquired Advocates for the Disabled, Inc. (Advocates) by
an action by the Board of Directors of Advocates granting Marc Community the sole power to appoint directors to
the Advocates' Board. Advocates has become an inactive organization.

TecMarc, Inc. (TecMarc) is an Arizona corporation and was incorporated in March 2008 to conduct the business
of information technology sales and support and property management services. TecMarc has 1,000 shares of
authorized common stock, all of which have been issued to Marc Community at $1 per share.

The Foundation for People with Disabilities (the Foundation) is a nonprofit corporation, incorporated in the state
of Arizona on January 29, 1988, to provide housing for disabled individuals in residential settings and
employment training facilities throughout Maricopa County. Marc Community is the sole member of the
Foundation's Board of Directors. During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Foundation transferred substantially all
of its property to Marc Community to facilitate the completion of bond financing.

The Village at Oasis Park — Phase I, Inc. (the Village) is a nonprofit corporation and was incorporated in the
state of Arizona in October 2009 to provide housing for disabled individuals. The Village's Board of Directors
consists of the Executive Committee of Marc Community and other individuals selected by the Executive
Committee of Marc Community.

The Village at Oasis Park — Phase 11, Inc. (the Village II) is a nonprofit corporation and was incorporated in the
state of Arizona in August 2010 to provide housing for disabled individuals. The Village II's Board of Directors
consists of the Executive Committee of Marc Community and other individuals selected by the Executive
Committee of Marc Community.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Marc Community, Advocates,
TecMarc, the Foundation, the Village, and the Village I1 (collectively, the Organization). All significant inter-
organization transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The Organization reports investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values, and all
investments in debt securities, at fair value. Investments at September 30, 2017 totaled approximately $612,000,
all of which were invested in mutual funds. Net investment income is reported in the statement of activities and
consists of interest and dividend income and realized and unrealized gains and losses.



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair
value due to the short-term nature of the items. The carrying value of promises to give due in more than one year
is based on the discounted net present value of the expected future cash receipts, and approximates fair value. The
fair values of bonds and notes payable are based on the stated interest rates, and approximate their carrying
values.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or
include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, the Organization has not experienced
losses in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and contributions receivable is
considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding
amounts are due from Board members, governmental agencies, and foundations supportive of the Organization’s
mission.

Property and Equipment

Purchased property and equipment over $5,000 is stated at cost. Property acquired by gift is stated at estimated
fair value at the date of the contribution. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives ranging from four to twenty-five years. In the absence of donor restrictions on how gifts of long-lived
assets must be used, the Organization does not imply time restrictions on such contributions. Costs of
maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed
currently.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected
to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is recognized to the
extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment during the
year ended September 30, 2017.

Deferred Revenue

Each month, the Organization receives block payment funding for behavioral health services from the Regional
Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) in Maricopa County. These funds are considered earned if total service
claims generated equal or exceed the block payments. If service claims are insufficient, the RBHA has the
contractual right to recoup the funding or characterize the deficiency as deferred revenue with an authorization to
use the funding in the next fiscal year. For the year ended September 30, 2017, the Organization has a service
claim deficiency balance of approximately $2,000,000. This amount is classified as deferred revenue on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Interest-Rate Swap
The Organization uses an interest-rate swap to mitigate interest-rate risk on bonds payable (Note 10). The related

liability or asset is reported at fair value in the statement of financial position, and unrealized gains or losses are
included in the statement of activities.



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Governmental Revenue

The Organization has contracts with state governmental agencies and various insurance companies to provide
services to clients with developmental disabilities and severe mental illness. Revenue from these contracts is
recognized as the services are performed.

Contributions

Contributions of cash or other assets are recognized as revenue when received at the estimated fair value on the
date of contribution. Promises to give are recognized as revenue when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. Promises to give that are received with conditions are not
recognized until those conditions are substantially met, unless the likelihood that the Organization will not fulfill
the conditions is remote, in which case the contribution is recognized when the promise is made. Contributions
that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the
fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets available for use in general operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets subject to donor restrictions that may or will be met by
expenditures or actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time, and certain income earned on
permanently restricted net assets that has not yet been appropriated for expenditure by the Organization’s
board of directors.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed restrictions that neither
expire by the passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by action of the Organization. The
restrictions stipulate that resources be maintained permanently but permit the Organization to expend the
income generated in accordance with the provisions of the agreements.

Change in Accounting Policy

As of October 1, 2016, the Organization adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-03,
Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. This update requires that debt issuance costs related to a
recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct reduction from the carrying amount of that
debt liability.

The Organization has adopted this standard as management believes this presentation more accurately reflects the
costs of borrowing for arrangements in which debt issuance costs are incurred.

Bond Issuance costs

Bond issuance costs are amortized over the period the related obligation is outstanding using the straight-line
method, which is a reasonable estimate of the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs are included within
long-term debt in the consolidated statement of financial position. Amortization of bond issuance costs is included
in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

9



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Fundraising Costs
All fundraising costs are expensed in the period incurred.
Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the consolidated statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting activities benefited, determined by specific identification and estimates of time spent
and benefits derived.

Income Tax Status

Marc Community, Advocates, the Foundation, the Village, and the Village II are organized as Arizona nonprofit
corporations and have been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income
taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as organizations described in Section 501(c)(3). They
qualify for charitable contributions under Section 170. Marc Community, Advocates, the Foundation and the
Village have been determined not to be private foundations under Section 509(a)(2), 509(a)(1), 509(a)(3) and
509(a)(3), respectively. Management has determined the Village Il is not a private foundation in accordance with
Section 509(a)(3). The organizations are annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income
Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from
business activities that are unrelated to its exempt purpose. Advocates, the Foundation, the Village and the Village
II have determined they have no unrelated business taxable income and have not filed the Exempt Organization
Business Income Tax Returns (IRS Form 990-T), or its Arizona equivalent, Form 99-T. Marc Community has
unrelated business taxable income and has filed the Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Returns (IRS
Form 990-T), and its Arizona equivalent, Form 99-T.

TecMarc accounts for income taxes under the liability method pursuant to income tax accounting guidance. Under
the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the
financial reporting and tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is established against the deferred tax asset
for the uncertainty of TecMarc’s ability to use the net operating tax loss carryforwards in the future.

Management believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any
uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. The organizations would recognize future
accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax expense if such
interest and penalties are incurred. Marc Community and TecMarc’s income tax filings required by federal and
state authorities are no longer subject to tax examination for years ending before September 30, 2014.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
may differ from those estimates.

10



Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-
02 to improve financial reporting about leasing transactions (Topic 842). The ASU affects all lease transactions.
Lessors will classify leases as either a sales-type, direct financing, or operating lease. In a sales-type lease, the
lessor transfers control of the underlying asset to the lessee. At lease commencement, the lessor should
derecognize the leased asset and record its net investment in the lease. The net investment in the lease consists of
a lease receivable and the unguaranteed residual asset. In a direct financing lease, the lessor should derecognize
the leased asset underlying the lease and record a net investment in the lease at lease commencement. The net
investment in the lease should be measured in the same manner as a sales-type lease adjusted for selling profit and
initial direct costs. An operating lease is neither a sale nor financing of an asset. The lessor should keep the asset
underlying the lease on its balance sheet and continue to depreciate the asset based on its useful life. Rental
revenue should be recognized on a straight-line basis. The Organization has several leasing transactions. The
amendments in this update are effective for years beginning after December 15, 2019. The Organization is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-02 and has not determined the effect to the consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14
to improve presentation of financial statements for not-for-profit entities. The ASU affects all not-for-profit
entities. The main provisions of this Update that will impact the Organization include:

e Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end
of the period, rather than for the currently required three classes. The not-for-profits will report amounts
for net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. They will also be required
to present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of
net assets rather than that of the currently required three classes.

e All not-for-profits will now be required to disclose an analysis of expenses by both functional and natural
classifications.

e All not-for-profits will have to add disclosures regarding how they manage liquidity and information that
communicates the availability of financial assets to meet cash needs for general expenditures.

This new standard will be effective for years beginning after December 15, 2017, or October 1, 2018 for the
Organization. The standard requires retrospective application.

Note 2 - Accounts Receivable and Credit Policy

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that
are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to
the allowance for doubtful accounts and a credit to accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are considered past
due 30 days after the invoice date. The Organization does not require collateral on accounts receivable balances
and does not generally charge interest on past due balances. At September 30, 2017, the allowance was
approximately $52,000.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Note 3- Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable at September 30, 2017 were $135,443. All contributions receivable were due in less than
one year and management has determined that there is no allowance for noncollectible contributions.

Note 4 - Notes Receivable

During the year ended September 30, 2017 the Organization entered into a note receivable agreement with a
former executive, which is collateralized by a vehicle. The note carries interest at approximately 2% and is
expected to be collected within one year. The Organization evaluates the collectability of the balance based upon
historical experience and the specific circumstances of individual notes, with an allowance for uncollectible
amounts being provided if necessary. As of September 30, 2017, management determined that there was no
allowance necessary.

Note 5- Conditional Promises to Give

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Organization received conditional promises to give as part of
agreements with Value Options (Magellan replaced Value Options as the RBHA contracted for Maricopa County
during the year ended June 30, 2008. Magellan was replaced by Mercy Maricopa Integrated Care during the year
ended June 30, 2014). Under the 2007 agreement, unrestricted title to two single-family residences, with an
estimated value of $607,000 at the date of the agreements, will be transferred to the Organization if certain
conditions are met. Under the 2006 agreement, unrestricted title to one single-family residence, with an estimated
value of $300,000 at the date of the agreement, will be transferred to the Organization if certain conditions are
met. The condition for the transfer of title is that the Organization functions as landlord of the residences for a
period of twenty-five years. During this period, the Organization will collect rent from the tenants and will be
responsible for repairs and maintenance on the residences. Once all conditions have been met, the Organization
will recognize the fair value of the property in the consolidated financial statements.

Note 6 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30, 2017:

Land $ 4,636,810
Buildings 27,025,526
Leasehold improvements 2,599,739
Vehicles 1,154,511
Furniture and equipment 3,225,249
Construction in progress 822,189

Total property and equipment 39,464,024

Less accumulated depreciation (13,245,630)
Property and equipment, net $ 26,218,394
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Depreciation expense for the year ended September 30, 2017 totaled approximately $1,609,000.

In June 2010, the City of Mesa transferred title to two residential properties to the Organization. The transfer
agreements stipulate that the properties must be used as affordable rental housing and that the properties cannot be
sold without written approval from the City of Mesa for twenty years from the date of the transfers.
Approximately $233,000 of temporarily restricted contribution revenue was recognized by the Organization
during the year ended June 30, 2010 related to the transfer of these properties.

In April 2011, the City of Mesa transferred title to four residential properties to the Organization. The transfer
agreements stipulate that the properties must be used as affordable rental housing and that the properties cannot be
sold without written approval from the City of Mesa for twenty years from the date of the transfers.
Approximately $355,000 of temporarily restricted contribution revenue was recognized by the Organization
during the year ended June 30, 2011 related to the transfer of these properties.

Note 7- Investments in Affiliates

The balance of investments in and receivables from affiliates consisted of the following at September 30, 2017:

Partners in Recovery, LLC

Original investment in Partners in Recovery, LLC (PIR) $ 105,915

Marc Community's share of accumulated PIR net income 341,398

447.313

Western Health and Wellness

Original investment in Western Health and Wellness 15,000
Marc Community's share of accumulated net loss (609)

14,391

Total investments in affiliates $ 461,704

Partners in Recovery, LLC

During the year ended June 30, 2009, Marc Community entered into an investment in PIR, a nonprofit
organization, in order to provide behavioral health services. PIR is one of four Provider Network Organizations
(PNO) that is contracted with the Regional Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) to provide behavioral health
services to adults in Maricopa County. Marc Community had a 50% membership interest in PIR for the year
ended June 30, 2013. This membership interest decreased to 33.3% during the year ended June 30, 2014 when a
new member was added to PIR. While Marc Community does not have control of PIR, it does have the ability to
exercise significant influence over PIR and has an ongoing economic interest in the net assets of PIR.
Accordingly, the Organization reports Marc Community's interest in the net assets of PIR, as well as any change
in the net assets of PIR, in a manner similar to the equity method of accounting for investments in common stock.

Marc Community's investment in PIR at September 30, 2017 was approximately $447,000, which includes Marc

Community's original investment of approximately $106,000, plus Marc Community's share of PIR's change in
net assets of approximately $85,000 for the year ended September 30, 2017.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Summarized financial statement information of PIR as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017 is as
follows:

Statement of Financial Position

Total assets $ 6,915,139
Total liabilities $ 5,725,765
Unrestricted net assets 1,189,374

Total liabilities and unrestricted net assets $ 6915139

Statement of Activities

Revenue $ 31,960,468
Expenses
Program services 30,268,998
Supporting activities 1,437,444
Total expenses 31,706,442
Change in unrestricted net assets 254,026
Marc Community's ownership percentage 33.3%
Marc Community's share of change in net assets $ 84,667

Note 8 - Notes Payable — Bank Line of Credit

The Organization has a $900,000 revolving line of credit with a bank which bears interest at the bank's prime rate
(3.00% at September 30, 2017). The balance outstanding cannot exceed 70% of the balance of outstanding
receivables (as defined). This line of credit is secured primarily by receivables and furniture and equipment of the
Organization and expires August 31, 2018. The outstanding balance on the line of credit as of September 30, 2017
was $0.

The line of credit requires the Organization to maintain certain financial ratios, such as current ratio, debt service
coverage ratio, and debt to net worth ratio, as defined in the agreements.

Note 9 - Derivative Financial Instrument: Interest Rate Swap

In July 2009, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement that effectively converted
approximately $7,500,000 of the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate debt to a fixed rate. The counterparty
to the swap agreement is the bank (a major U.S. financial institution) that holds the Organization's LIBOR-based
variable-rate bonds payable. Under the swap agreement, the Organization pays interest at a fixed rate of 4.80%
and, in return, receives interest at a variable rate based on 65% of the one-month LIBOR rate (1.23% at
September 30, 2017) plus a margin of 1.75%. The net effect of the swap is to fix the interest rate on $6,900,000 of
the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate bond payable at 4.80%.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

The interest rate swap agreement qualifies as a cash flow hedge, and accordingly, the fair value of the interest rate
swap agreement, which is adjusted regularly, is recorded in the Organization's consolidated statement of financial
position as an asset or liability, as necessary, with a corresponding adjustment to other charges. The fair value of
the Organization's interest rate swap at September 30, 2017 was a liability totaling approximately $190,000. The
unrealized holding gain on this interest rate swap was approximately $191,000 for the year ended September 30,
2017.

In August 2014, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement that effectively converted
approximately $2,800,000 of the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate debt to a fixed rate. The counterparty
to the swap agreement is the bank (a major U.S. financial institution) that holds the Organization's LIBOR-based
variable-rate bonds payable. Under the swap agreement, the Organization pays interest at a fixed rate of 3.50%
and, in return, receives interest at a variable rate based on 69.50% of the one-month LIBOR rate (1.23% at
September 30, 2017) plus a margin of 1.40%. The net effect of the swap is to fix the interest rate on $2,800,000 of
the Organization's LIBOR-based variable-rate bond payable at 3.50%.

The interest rate swap agreement qualifies as a cash flow hedge, and accordingly, the fair value of the interest rate
swap agreement, which is adjusted regularly, is recorded in the Organization's consolidated statement of financial
position as an asset or liability, as necessary, with a corresponding adjustment to other charges. The fair value of
the Organization's interest rate swap at September 30, 2017 was a liability totaling approximately $6,000. The
unrealized holding gain on this interest rate swap was approximately $15,000 for the year ended September 30,
2017.

Note 10 - Notes Payable
Notes payable consisted of the following at September 30, 2017:

Note payable to a bank, due in monthly installments of
approximately $10,000, including interest at 3.49%, final
payment in November 2017; collateralized by software
and equipment. $ 20,014

Note payable to a bank, due in monthly installments of
approximately $3,200, including interest at 3.91%, final
payment in March 2024; collateralized by the property. 516,039

Note payable to finance company, due in monthly installments
of approximately $800, including interest at 1.90%, final
payment in August 2022; collateralized by a vehicle. 46,489

Total notes payable $ 582,542
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30,2017
Annual principal payments on the notes payable are scheduled as follows:
Year Ending September 30,

2018 $ 47,332
2019 28,218
2020 29,150
2021 30,115
2022 30,295
Thereafter 417,432

Total notes payable $ 582,542

Interest expense for the year ended September 30, 2017 totaled approximately $363,000, which includes interest
on the notes payable above and on the bonds payable (Note 10). In addition, approximately $21,000 of interest
expense for the year ended September 30, 2017 was interest expense attributable to amortization of bond issuance
costs.

Note 11 - Bonds Payable

In December 2013, the Organization entered into loan agreements with the Industrial Development Authority of
the County of Maricopa to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 A (Series 2013A) in the amount of
$6,900,000 for a term of twenty-five years, and to issue Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B (Series
2013B) in the amount of $2,815,000 for a term of twenty-five years. Series 2013 A and Series 2013B (collectively,
"the Bonds") are collateralized by certain real property as set forth in the agreements. The Organization borrowed
$6,800,000 under Series 2013 A, and approximately $6,121,000 was outstanding at September 30, 2017. The
Organization borrowed approximately $2,300,000 under Series 2013B, and approximately $2,283,000 was
outstanding at September 30, 2017. The issuance of these bonds paid off the balance of the Community Services
Facilities Bond, Series 2009A which had an outstanding balance of approximately $6,845,000 at June 30, 2013.

Interest on the Bonds is payable monthly under variable interest rate provisions. Series 2013 A is due in monthly
principal amounts of approximately $17,000 to $35,000 through July 2039. Series 2013 A bears interest at 65% of
the one-month LIBOR rate (1.23% at September 30, 2017) plus 1.75%. Series 2013 A is subject to an interest rate
swap agreement (Note 8). Series 2013B is due in monthly principal payments starting in February 2017 in
amounts of approximately $6,000 to $24,000 through July 2039. Series 2013B bears interest at 65% of the one-
month LIBOR rate (1.23% at September 30, 2017) plus 1.75%.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Annual principal payments on the bonds payable are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2018 $ 254,830
2019 266,490
2020 277,997
2021 291,061
2022 304,723
Thereafter 7,008,257
Less unamortized bond issuance costs (163,340)
Total bonds payable $ 8,240,018

The Organization is required to maintain certain net asset, liquidity, and indebtedness ratios, and must comply
with other general covenants of the loan agreement. As of September 30, 2017, the Organization was in
compliance with those requirements.

Note 12 - Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of the following at September 30, 2017:

Restrictions on donated vehicles and property $ 1,391,189
Housing for low income residents 4,453,500
Time restrictions on contributions receivable 20,997
Other 29,425

Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 5,895,111

Temporarily restricted net assets released from restriction include:

Restrictions on donated vehicles and property $ 60,969
Time restrictions on contributions receivable 25,200
Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 86,169

Permanently restricted net assets are to be maintained in perpetuity. The income from these funds is temporarily
restricted for use in promoting independent living.

Note 13 - Commitments
The Organization leases office space, residential houses, vehicles, and equipment under various non-cancelable

operating leases that expire at various dates through March 2022. Several leases have renewal options. The
Organization also leases residential houses and equipment under various month-to-month leases.
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Marc Community Resources, Inc. and Aftiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms in excess
of one year are scheduled as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2018 $ 868,256
2019 661,617
2020 377,483
2021 306,741
2022 145,359
Thereafter 20,814

Total future minimum lease payments $ 2,380,270

Rent expense for the year ended September 30, 2017 totaled approximately $1,232,000.

Note 14 - Concentrations

Revenue

The Organization received significant portions of its total revenue for the year ended September 30, 2017 from the
Arizona Department of Economic Security (DES) and the Regional Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) through

contracts that are renewed annually.

The percentages of total revenue and the amounts of accounts receivable (before the allowance for doubtful
accounts) from DES and RBHA are as follows as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017:

Total Accounts
Revenue Receivable
DES 39% $ 1,061,995
RBHA 48% 292,263
Total 87% $ 1,354,258

Note 15 - Employee Benefit Plans

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering substantially all employees. The Plan
provides for employer contributions based primarily on employee participation. The total contributions made to
the Plan by the Organization were $0 for the year ended September 30, 2017.

The Organization has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan (the Non-Qualified 457b Plan) covering certain
executives. The Non-Qualified 457b Plan provides for employer contributions at the discretion of the board of
directors of the Organization. Employee deferrals are limited to 85% of annual compensation. Total contributions
made to the Non-Qualified 457b Plan by the Organization were $66,000 for the year ended September 30, 2017.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30,2017

Note 16 - Related Party Transactions
Related party transactions not elsewhere disclosed are as follows:

During the year ended September 30, 2017, Marc Community charged PIR for office space, programmatic
services, and administrative services, including accounting and management services. Additionally, PIR
reimbursed Marc Community for various expenses paid by Marc Community on behalf of PIR. Marc Community
received a total of approximately $1,174,000 for the year ended September 30, 2017, of which, approximately
$96,000 was due from related parties at September 30, 2017.

Note 17 - Contingencies

Periodically, the Organization is involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of operations. In the
opinion of management based on consultations with legal counsel, losses, if any, from these matters are covered
by insurance or are immaterial to the Organization’s consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of activities.

Note 18 - Fair Value Measurements

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the consolidated financial statements. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal,
or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value
refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best
information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Organization
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active,
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated
inputs.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, the Organization develops inputs
using the best information available in the circumstances.

For assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the fair value hierarchy requires the use of
observable market data when available. In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement has been determined based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:
Investments

A significant portion of the Organization’s investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they are
comprised of open-end mutual funds with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Organization's derivative financial instrument described in Note 8 is recorded at fair value, which has been
calculated based primarily on observable interest rates and yield curves for the term of the swap.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine the fair value of certain assets could result in a different fair value measurement.

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy related to the Organization's assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value as of September 30, 2017:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Mutual funds $ 580,440 $ - $ - $ 580,440
Pooled funds held at a
community foundation - 31,613 - 31,613
Derivative financial
instrument - (195,690) - (195,690)

Note 19 - Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows as of September 30, 2017:

Current:

Federal $ -
State -

Deferred:
Federal (3,000)
State (26,000)
Valuation allowance 29,000

Total provision $ -
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The Organization’s actual income tax (benefit) expense for the year ended September 30, 2017 differs from the
expected amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate of 15% to net (loss) income before
income taxes for the following reasons:

Computed tax (benefit) expense at 15% $ (3,000)

State taxes (26,000)

Change in valuation allowance 29,000
$ -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following as of September 30, 2017:

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss $ 225,000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Fixed assets $ .
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 225,000
Valuation allowance (225,000)
Net deferred tax assets $ -

As of September 30, 2017, the Organization has estimated federal and state net operating loss carryforwards
(NOLs) of $1,400,000 and $760,000, respectively, which begin to expire in the year 2028.

For financial reporting purposes, a valuation allowance of $225,000 at September 30, 2017, has been established
to offset deferred tax assets related to NOLs. Pursuant to income tax accounting guidance, the Organization has
established a valuation allowance against the entire net deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance increased by
$19,000 in 2017. The Organization will continue to evaluate tax assets and provide a valuation allowance until it
is more likely than not to realize the tax benefit.

The Organization does not expect a significant change with respect to unrecognized tax benefits within the next
12 months.

The Organization files income tax returns with federal and state jurisdictions. The Organization is not currently
under audit in any jurisdiction.

Note 20 - Subsequent Events

As of October 6, 2017, the Organization bought out the remaining equity partners and is now the sole member of
Partners in Recovery, LLC.

In April 2018, the Organization refinanced the bond agreements with the Industrial Development Authority of the
County of Maricopa and issued Direct Purchase Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A in the amount of $8,852,000;
Series 2018B in the amount of $4,657,000; and Series 2016C in the amount of $3,100,000. The Series are
collateralized by certain real property as set forth in the agreements. The proceeds from the refinance were used to
pay off the Organization’s line of credit.
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